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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S



         2           THE COURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON.



         3                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION



         4  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         5  Q.   MR. WARREN-BOULTON, BEFORE WE BROKE FOR LUNCH, YOU



         6  WERE TESTIFYING ABOUT A DOCUMENT AUTHORED BY MR. KEMPIN OF



         7  MICROSOFT.  DO YOU RECALL THAT TESTIMONY?



         8  A.   YES.



         9  Q.   AND YOUR TESTIMONY WAS--I THINK THE WORDS YOU USED



        10  WAS, THIS IS THE DOCUMENT I ALWAYS COME BACK TO, OR



        11  SOMETHING LIKE THAT?



        12  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT I SAID, BUT IT'S AN INTERESTING



        13  DOCUMENT.



        14  Q.   COULD YOU TURN TO PARAGRAPH 59 ON PAGE 27 OF YOUR



        15  TESTIMONY AND TELL ME IF THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH YOU REFER



        16  IN THAT PARAGRAPH--



        17  A.   CAN YOU HOLD JUST A SECOND?



        18  Q.   SURELY.  I WILL JUST FINISH THE QUESTION.



        19           --IF THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH YOU REFER IN THAT



        20  PARAGRAPH IS THE DOCUMENT YOU WERE DESCRIBING IMMEDIATELY



        21  BEFORE LUNCH.



        22  A.   WHAT PARAGRAPH?



        23  Q.   59, PAGE 27.



        24           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



        25  A.   YES.  IN FACT, PARAGRAPH 59 HAS A QUOTE FROM THAT�
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         1  DOCUMENT.



         2  Q.   OKAY.



         3           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I BELIEVE THE DOCUMENT



         4  WHICH IS REFERRED TO IN THAT PARAGRAPH HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED



         5  AS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 365, BUT THAT IS NOT IN EVIDENCE.



         6  MICROSOFT WOULD NOT HAVE AN OBJECTION IF THE GOVERNMENT



         7  CHOSE TO MOVE IT INTO EVIDENCE SO I COULD PUT IT UP ON THE



         8  SCREEN AND EXAMINE THE WITNESS ON THE DOCUMENT.



         9           MR. SCHWARTZ:  WE OFFER THE DOCUMENT INTO



        10  EVIDENCE, YOUR HONOR.



        11           MR. LACOVARA:  NO OBJECTION.



        12           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 365 IS ADMITTED.



        13                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 365 WAS



        14                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        15  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        16  Q.   NOW, LOOKING AT THE COVER PAGE HERE, THIS IS A



        17  MEMORANDUM THAT WAS SENT FROM JOACHIM KEMPIN TO BILL



        18  GATES; IS THAT CORRECT?



        19  A.   THAT'S WHAT THE FIRST PAGE SAYS, YES.



        20  Q.   AND YOUR TESTIMONY SAYS THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS



        21  WRITTEN IN JANUARY 1997.  THAT IS NOT CORRECT; IS THAT



        22  RIGHT?



        23  A.   IT WAS WRITTEN WHEN--WRITTEN DECEMBER 16, 1997.



        24  Q.   SO, THE COMMUNICATION THAT'S ACTUALLY MENTIONED HERE



        25  IS ALMOST A YEAR AFTER WHAT YOUR TESTIMONY REPRESENTS;�
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         1  RIGHT?



         2  A.   I'M SORRY?  I DON'T KNOW WHAT--AS I SAID I THINK



         3  BEFORE, IF SOMEONE WOULD GIVE ME THE DOCUMENT, I WILL KNOW



         4  WHAT DATE IT IS.



         5  Q.   YOU HAVE THE DOCUMENT, AND IT'S IN PARAGRAPH 59 OF



         6  YOUR TESTIMONY.  THAT'S WHERE YOU SAY IT'S JANUARY 29,



         7  1997.



         8  A.   OH, I SEE.  WAIT A MINUTE.



         9           (PAUSE.)



        10  A.   THE DIRECT REFERS TO IT AS A JANUARY 1997, AND THE



        11  DOCUMENT HAS IN FRONT OF IT A DECEMBER 1997.  GIVEN THE



        12  CHOICE BETWEEN THE TWO, I WOULD GO WITH THE DECEMBER '97.



        13  Q.   VERY GOOD.



        14           AND IF YOU LOOK AT PAGE 7194, THE VERY FIRST PAGE



        15  OF THIS DOCUMENT, IT SAYS "DT OS PRICING STRATEGY."  DO



        16  YOU SEE THAT?  AT THE VERY TOP.



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT TO STAND FOR DESKTOP OPERATING



        19  SYSTEM PRICING STRATEGY?



        20  A.   YES.



        21  Q.   AND WHAT IS MR. KEMPIN'S JOB AT MICROSOFT?



        22  A.   I BELIEVE HE'S HEAD OF THE OEM SALES.



        23  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOU TESTIFY--IN YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT YOU



        24  QUOTE A PORTION OF THIS DOCUMENT THAT YOU DESCRIBED TO THE



        25  COURT EARLIER TODAY--RIGHT?--AND THAT'S THE PORTION THAT�
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         1  DEALS WITH WHETHER COMPAQ COULD GET INTO THE OPERATING



         2  SYSTEM BUSINESS.  IS THAT RIGHT?



         3  A.   YES.  THE DOCUMENT DOESN'T HAVE PAGES, BUT I HAVE MS



         4  7007196.



         5  Q.   OKAY.  AND AS YOU TESTIFIED EARLIER, THAT'S NOT THE



         6  ONLY COMPETITIVE CHALLENGE THAT MR. KEMPIN IDENTIFIED, IS



         7  IT?



         8  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  AND, IN FACT, I THINK YOU CHARACTERIZED WHAT



        10  YOU RECALL FROM THIS DOCUMENT ABOUT MR. KEMPIN'S VIEWS ON



        11  INTEL; IS THAT RIGHT?



        12  A.   AS I SAID, I HAD TO DO THIS FROM MEMORY, BUT IT WAS



        13  MY RECOLLECTION OF THE LAST ONE, YES.



        14  Q.   OKAY.  COULD WE SEE THAT, PLEASE.



        15           AND WHAT MR. KEMPIN SAYS ABOUT INTEL IS, "WE READ



        16  ABOUT IT IN THE NEWS TODAY, AND OVER THE PAST COUPLE OF



        17  WEEKS, IF THEY DECIDE TO OWN THE OPERATING SYSTEM AS WELL



        18  AS THE CPU, OUR BUSINESS WILL GET UGLY."



        19           AND YOU UNDERSTAND CPU TO BE A REFERENCE TO



        20  INTEL'S MICROPROCESSORS; CORRECT?



        21  A.   IT'S A CENTRAL PROCESSING UNIT, YES.



        22  Q.   "THIS COULD BE AN INTEL LEAD AND FUNDED COALITION,



        23  SAY, WITH COMPAQ AND NSCP."



        24           YOU UNDERSTAND THAT TO REFER TO NETSCAPE, SIR?



        25  A.   YES.�
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         1  Q.   "I'M CONVINCED THAT THEY HAVE BEEN THINKING ABOUT



         2  THIS FOR SOME TIME.  THEY COULD BUY SUN SOFT OR START A



         3  SCOPE WORK PROJECT ON THEIR OWN."



         4           WHAT IS SUN SOFT?



         5  A.   SUN SOFT IS SUN'S SOFTWARE OPERATION.



         6  Q.   AND AMONG OTHER THINGS, SUN SOFT MAKES A PRODUCT



         7  CALLED "SOLARIS 2.6"; IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   YES.



         9  Q.   AND THAT'S A DESKTOP OPERATING SYSTEM THAT RUNS ON



        10  INTEL'S MICROPROCESSORS; CORRECT?



        11  A.   YES.



        12  Q.   OKAY.  AND WHAT YOU UNDERSTAND MR. KEMPIN TO MEAN BUY



        13  THE PHRASE SKUNK-WORK PROJECT?



        14  A.   WELL, I THINK THE PHRASE "SKUNK WORK" GOES BACK TO



        15  THE LOCKHEED SKUNK WORK, WHICH WAS A SECRET RESEARCH



        16  OPERATION PROBABLY IN NEVADA.



        17           THE COURT:  GOES BACK TO L'IL ABNER.



        18           THE WITNESS:  I STAND CORRECTED.  IT GOES BACK



        19  EVEN FURTHER THAN THAT.



        20  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        21  Q.   I DON'T THINK IT'S A MATERIAL POINT, BUT "IF THEY



        22  DECIDE TO SELL THE OPERATING SYSTEM FOR $1 AND THE CPU FOR



        23  $200, THEY WILL GET THE OEM'S ON THEIR SIDE."



        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        25  A.   YES.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOU HAD READ THIS DOCUMENT AT THE TIME YOU



         2  FORMULATED THE OPINIONS THAT ARE SUMMARIZED IN YOUR



         3  TESTIMONY; CORRECT?



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   AND YOU DIDN'T QUOTE THIS SECTION IN YOUR TESTIMONY,



         6  DID YOU, SIR?



         7  A.   NO.



         8  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR OPINION OR YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT



         9  MICROSOFT, IN DECEMBER OF 1997, AT LEAST, BELIEVED THAT



        10  INTEL HAD THE ABILITY TO, AS THEY SAY, GET THE OEM'S ON



        11  THEIR SIDE IF INTEL CHOSE TO GET INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM



        12  BUSINESS?



        13  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT THIS DOCUMENT MEANS IS



        14  LITERALLY WITHIN THE STATEMENT OF WHAT IT SAYS.  I CAN'T



        15  TESTIFY AS TO WHETHER MR. KEMPIN BELIEVED WHAT HE SAID



        16  HERE OR THAT ANYBODY ELSE BELIEVED MR. KEMPIN.  THIS IS



        17  THE DOCUMENT THAT I HAVE.



        18  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU CREDIT THIS DOCUMENT?  DO YOU AGREE



        19  WITH THE DOCUMENT IN THIS RESPECT?



        20  A.   THERE ARE TWO, IF YOU LIKE, ELEMENTS OF THIS



        21  STATEMENT.  ONE MIGHT BE CALLED A FACTUAL ISSUE, AND THE



        22  OTHER MIGHT BE CALLED SOMETHING WHAT AN ECONOMIST WOULD



        23  RESONATE WITH.



        24           THE FACTUAL ISSUE IS WHATEVER THE FACTS ARE.  I



        25  THINK, OBVIOUSLY, MR. KEMPIN AND WHOMEVER CAN INTERPRET�
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         1  THAT.



         2           MY ONLY POINT HERE IS THAT INTEL, BECAUSE OF



         3  ITS--BECAUSE OF THE FACT IT IS A CHIP PRODUCER, AND THE



         4  PRODUCER OF A COMPLEMENT TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM HAS A



         5  PARTICULAR INCENTIVE TO ENTER SINCE IT WOULD BE MORE



         6  PROFITABLE FOR THE PRODUCER OF A COMPLEMENT TO ENTER THE



         7  OPERATING SYSTEM THAN IT WOULD BE FOR SOMEONE WHO IS AN



         8  INDEPENDENT ENTRY.  IT IS A PARTICULAR ADVANTAGE THAT



         9  MAKES IT INTO A MORE LIKELY POTENTIAL ENTRANT, AND THAT'S



        10  ALL, AS AN ECONOMIST, I CAN ADD TO WHAT'S HERE.



        11  Q.   AND SPEAKING AS AN ECONOMIST, IS IT YOUR OPINION THAT



        12  THE POTENTIAL ENTRY OF INTEL, THE COMPANY THAT PRODUCES



        13  THE MICROPROCESSOR THAT YOU SAY DEFINES THIS MARKET, THAT



        14  THE POTENTIAL ENTRY OF INTEL CONSTRAINS MICROSOFT'S



        15  ABILITY TO RAISE THE PRICE OF ITS OPERATING SYSTEM



        16  PRODUCTS?



        17  A.   NO.  I'M JUST SAYING THAT THESE ARE THE PEOPLE WHO



        18  MR. KEMPIN APPEARED TO BELIEVE WERE POTENTIAL ENTRANTS



        19  INTO THESE MARKETS.  THERE ARE FOUR CATEGORIES.  I HAVE



        20  FORGOTTEN THE FOURTH, WHICH IS NETSCAPE BY ITSELF.  MY



        21  APOLOGIES.  THOSE ARE THE FOUR CATEGORIES THAT THEY



        22  THOUGHT THAT A POTENTIAL THREAT COULD COME FROM.



        23           AND I ALSO SAID--THE FIRST ONE WAS THE ONLY ONE



        24  AT ISSUE HERE.  I THINK IT WAS BOTH THE SUN COALITION WITH



        25  JAVA AND, APPARENTLY, THE THIRD ONE, WHICH IS THAT�
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         1  NETSCAPE MAY COME FROM THE BROWSER SIDE.



         2  Q.   NOW, LET ME STEP BACK FOR A MOMENT.  WE ARE NOT DONE



         3  WITH THIS DOCUMENT, BUT YOUR TESTIMONY HAS ABOUT 144



         4  FOOTNOTES, GIVE OR TAKE; IS THAT RIGHT?



         5  A.   I TAKE YOUR WORD FOR IT.



         6  Q.   AND YOU CITE DOZENS AND DOZENS OF MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS



         7  AND DOZENS AND DOZENS OF EXCERPTS OF TESTIMONY FROM



         8  DEPOSITIONS; CORRECT?



         9  A.   YES.



        10  Q.   I TAKE IT THAT WHEN YOU CITE SOMETHING OR QUOTE



        11  SOMETHING TO THE COURT, YOU ARE DOING IT BECAUSE YOU



        12  BELIEVE IT IS ACCURATE AS, IN SOME SENSE, SUPPORTIVE OF



        13  THE OPINIONS YOU ARE EXPRESSING IN YOUR TESTIMONY; IS THAT



        14  RIGHT?



        15  A.   WELL, THEY COULD BE EITHER SUPPORTIVE OR IT COULD BE



        16  "BUT SEE."



        17  Q.   LET ME ASK ABOUT THAT.



        18           WHEN YOU WERE DEALING WITH MY COLLEAGUES IN THE



        19  OFFICES OF THE STATES ATTORNEYS GENERAL, DID YOU ASK THEM



        20  TO SEE THE EVIDENCE OR THE DOCUMENTS THAT WOULD BE, SHALL



        21  WE SAY, THE "BUT SEE" DOCUMENTS?



        22  A.   I ASKED THEM FOR ALL DOCUMENTS THAT WOULD BE USEFUL



        23  AND RELEVANT.  I THINK ONE OF THE POINTS THAT, OBVIOUSLY,



        24  AS AN EXPERT TESTIFYING SAYS IS THAT YOU WANT TO SEE



        25  DOCUMENTS ON EITHER SIDE.  I MEAN, NOBODY WANTS TO SIT UP�
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         1  HERE AND GET BLIND-SIDED.



         2           SO, THE ANSWER WOULD BE YES, I WOULD HAVE ASKED



         3  THEM FOR ALL DOCUMENTS THAT WERE--THAT BORE ON THE ISSUES



         4  THAT I WAS DEALING WITH.



         5  Q.   WERE YOU FINISHED?



         6  A.   YES.



         7           I WOULD ALSO POINT OUT THAT THAT SCREENING



         8  PROCESS WAS CARRIED OUT NOT JUST BY PEOPLE AT THE NEW YORK



         9  ATTORNEY GENERALS OFFICE, BUT ALSO BY COLLEAGUES OF MICRA.



        10  Q.   AND WHEN YOU QUOTED TESTIMONY FROM DEPOSITIONS, DID



        11  YOU READ THE ENTIRE DEPOSITION TO MAKE SURE THE QUOTATION



        12  WAS IN CONTEXT AND FAIRLY STATED THE WITNESS'S VIEWS ON A



        13  PARTICULAR SUBJECT?



        14  A.   AS A PRACTICAL MATTER, READING ENTIRE DEPOSITIONS IN



        15  THIS CASE WOULD HAVE BEEN, I THINK, NOT A VERY EFFICIENT



        16  PART OF TIME, AND WHAT I TRIED TO DO WAS READ ENOUGH



        17  AROUND IT SO I COULD GET THE CONTEXT.  BUT NO, I DID NOT



        18  READ LARGE NUMBERS OF ENTIRE DEPOSITIONS.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, HAVE YOU LOOKED, OTHER THAN THIS



        20  DOCUMENT, AT INTEL'S ABILITY OR CAPACITY TO ENTER THE



        21  MARKET FOR WHAT YOU CALL PC OPERATING SYSTEMS?



        22  A.   IT'S NOT AN ISSUE I HAVE GIVEN A GREAT DEAL OF



        23  THOUGHT TO.  IT JUST SEEMED TO HAVE, AS WE SAY, COME UP



        24  TODAY.



        25           THE OBVIOUS ANSWER IS, AS AN ECONOMIST, I WOULD�
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         1  SAY THAT INTEL HAS A PARTICULAR ABILITY TO ENTER BECAUSE



         2  IT'S PRODUCING COMPLEMENT AND CERTAINLY HAS THE FINANCIAL



         3  RESOURCES TO DO SO SHOULD IT DECIDE TO DO SO.  SO, IT HAS



         4  THE ABILITY, AND IT HAS A PARTICULARLY STRONG INCENTIVE IF



         5  IT SHOULD DECIDE TO DO THAT.



         6           BUT BEYOND, THAT I DON'T THINK I HAVE VERY MUCH



         7  TO OFFER.



         8  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT THE "MERCED" PROJECT AT INTEL IS,



         9  SIR?



        10  A.   YES.  I THINK IT'S THE 64-BIT CHIP.



        11  Q.   IT'S A CHIP WITH A WHOLE NEW ARCHITECTURE; IS THAT



        12  RIGHT?



        13  A.   IT'S MY RECOLLECTION, YES.



        14  Q.   AND WHEN YOU'RE SAYING "64-BIT," YOU ARE



        15  DISTINGUISHING IT FROM THE CURRENT GENERATION OF INTEL



        16  CHIPS WHICH ARE 32-BIT MICROPROCESSORS?



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   AND YOU UNDERSTAND THAT AN ENTIRELY NEW FAMILY OF



        19  OPERATING SYSTEMS WOULD HAVE TO BE DEVELOPED TO TAKE



        20  ADVANTAGE OF THE PERFORMANCE OF 64-BIT MICROPROCESSORS?



        21  A.   I THINK THAT WOULD BE CORRECT, YES.



        22  Q.   DID YOU TAKE THOSE FACTS INTO ACCOUNT IN JUDGING THE



        23  POSSIBILITY THAT INTEL, WHICH IS NOW WORKING ON THE FIRST



        24  64-BIT CHIP, MIGHT ENTER THE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE



        25  BUSINESS?�
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         1  A.   I WASN'T FORMING AN OPINION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT



         2  INTEL WAS LIKELY TO ENTER INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM



         3  BUSINESS.  I THINK THE QUESTION WAS THAT I WAS ASKED, I



         4  THOUGHT, WHAT DID MICROSOFT BELIEVE WERE POTENTIAL



         5  ENTRANTS INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS.



         6  Q.   BUT YOU HAVE, SIR, FORMED AN OPINION ON THE



         7  DURABILITY OF WHAT YOU CALL MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY; IS THAT



         8  CORRECT?



         9  A.   I HAVE FORMED OPINION AS TO--YES, IN THE CONTEXT OF



        10  THE SUSTAIN--THE DURABILITY OF THEIR MARKET SHARE, YES.



        11  Q.   HAVE YOU FORMED AN OPINION AS TO THE DURABILITY OF



        12  MICROSOFT'S WHAT YOU CALL "MONOPOLY POWER" IN WHAT YOU



        13  CALL THE "PC OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET"?



        14  A.   YES, ALTHOUGH THAT'S INFORMED BY--AS AN ECONOMIST,



        15  PARTICULARLY--THE ANSWER IS YES.



        16  Q.   AND THAT OPINION IS...



        17  A.   THAT ALL INDICATIONS ARE THAT UNLESS SOMETHING



        18  SURPRISING HAPPENS--AND I THINK I BETTER LEAVE THAT



        19  OPEN--MICROSOFT WILL CONTINUE TO HAVE A MONOPOLY POWER IN



        20  THE OPERATING SYSTEMS MARKET.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  WOULD YOU REGARD WHAT MR. KEMPIN IS TALKING



        22  ABOUT HERE AS SOMETHING SURPRISING?



        23  A.   SURPRISING IN WHAT SENSE?



        24  Q.   IN THE SENSE OF WHAT YOU JUST USED THE WORD IN YOUR



        25  PRIOR ANSWER.�
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         1  A.   I THINK IF INTEL WERE TO ANNOUNCE THAT THEY WERE



         2  ENTERING THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET WITH, IF YOU LIKE, A



         3  CLONE OR A COMPATIBLE WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM WHICH HAD



         4  THE SAME API SET AS THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM, I WOULD



         5  REGARD THAT AS A SURPRISE, YES.



         6  Q.   NOW, RETURNING TO EXHIBIT 365, MR. KEMPIN DOESN'T



         7  ACTUALLY SAY ANYTHING ABOUT THIS CROSS-PLATFORM THREAT IN



         8  THOSE TERMS, DOES HE?



         9  A.   WHERE IN PARTICULAR ARE YOU TALKING ABOUT?



        10  Q.   I'M ASKING YOU A GENERAL QUESTION.



        11  A.   WELL, HE TALKS ABOUT SUN.



        12  Q.   YES, HE DOES.



        13  A.   AND THE COALITION WITH JAVA, AND HE SAYS THERE IS THE



        14  COMPATIBILITY BARRIER.



        15  Q.   BUT LET'S TAKE A LOOK AT EXACTLY WHAT HE SAYS ABOUT



        16  SUN.



        17           WHAT HE SAYS IS SUN AND ITS COALITION WITH



        18  JAVA--AND YOU UNDERSTAND THAT TO BE A REFERENCE TO THE



        19  VERY CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES ABOUT WHICH YOU ARE



        20  TESTIFYING TODAY; CORRECT, SIR?



        21  A.   YES.



        22  Q.   OKAY.  AND HE SAYS, "FOR THE NEXT TWO TO THREE YEARS,



        23  THE BARRIERS ARE HUGE FOR THEM.  AND EVEN IBM, AFTER



        24  STUDYING THIS TECHNOLOGY, IS NOT CONVINCED IT WOULD



        25  SATISFY CONSUMERS WHEN IMPLEMENTED DURING THAT TIME FRAME.�
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         1  IN ADDITION, THERE IS THE COMPATIBILITY BARRIER AND THE



         2  FACT THAT OEM'S SEE SUN AS THE ENEMY AND WILL NOT BE



         3  EASILY CONVINCED TO BE A DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL FOR THEM."



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   YOU DON'T QUOTE THAT IN YOUR TESTIMONY EITHER, DO



         6  YOU, SIR?



         7  A.   WELL, NO, BECAUSE IF YOU LOOK DOWN AT THE ISV, YOU



         8  THEN RUN INTO THE STATEMENT THAT NETSCAPE MAY COME FROM



         9  THE BROWSER SIDE, BUT I CONSIDER THEM TOO WEAK TO SUCCEED



        10  ALONE, SO THEY ARE ONLY DANGEROUS IF THEY TEAM UP WITH



        11  SUN--



        12  Q.   RIGHT, AND CONTINUE READING.



        13  A.   "COMPATIBILITY AND YET ANOTHER PLATFORM ARE THE



        14  BIGGEST INHIBITORS."



        15           SO, I INTERPRETED THIS--AND I DON'T MEAN TO



        16  INTERPRET TOO MUCH OUT OF THE TEA LEAVES--THAT MR. KEMPIN



        17  IS SAYING THAT SUN, BY ITSELF, WITHOUT A BROWSER, IS



        18  NOT--IS NOT THAT GREAT A THREAT OR CERTAINLY WOULD BE



        19  DELAYED, BUT THAT SUN--TAKING A SUN-JAVA TECHNOLOGIES, IF



        20  COMBINED WITH AN INDEPENDENT BROWSER OUT THERE, WOULD, IN



        21  FACT, BE, AS HE SAYS, DANGEROUS.



        22  Q.   WHAT DO YOU THINK MR. KEMPIN MEANS WHEN HE SAYS "AND



        23  YET ANOTHER PLATFORM IS ONE OF THE BIGGEST INHIBITORS?



        24  A.   IF YOU PUT TOGETHER A BROWSER, INDEPENDENT BROWSER,



        25  WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF JAVA APPLICATIONS AND ADDED AN�
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM, THAT COULD FORM ANOTHER PLATFORM, AND IT



         2  WOULD BE AN ALTERNATIVE TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM, IF YOU



         3  LIKE, THAT WAS PART OF THAT PLATFORM, WOULD BE AN



         4  ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS'S OPERATING SYSTEM.



         5  Q.   WELL, HE DOESN'T SAY AN ALTERNATIVE OR ANOTHER



         6  PLATFORM.  HE SAYS IT WOULD BE AN "INHIBITOR."



         7           MY QUESTION TO YOU IS:  WHAT IS THE



         8  UNDERSTANDING, YOUR UNDERSTANDING, OF WHAT MR. KEMPIN



         9  MEANS WHEN HE SAYS "INHIBITOR"?



        10  A.   I THINK WHAT HE'S SAYING IS THAT IF YOU--WELL, I



        11  MEAN, I DON'T MEAN TO TOTALLY INTERPRET MR. KEMPIN'S OWN



        12  WORDS, BUT THE BIGGEST INHIBITOR FROM THE POINT OF VIEW



        13  OF, I GUESS, FROM COMPETITION OF NETSCAPE, IS THE PROBLEM



        14  OF COMPATIBILITY WITH APPLICATIONS, AND THAT'S WHY THE



        15  JAVA APPLICATIONS PLAY A CRITICAL ROLE BECAUSE THEY ARE



        16  CROSS-PLATFORMED.



        17  Q.   WE WILL COME TO THAT SHORTLY, SIR.



        18           HAVE YOU SEEN ANY OTHER MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS WHERE



        19  SOMEONE FROM MICROSOFT MAKES THE STATEMENT THAT THEIR



        20  PERCEPTION IS THAT OEM'S DON'T SEE A REASON THAT COMPUTER



        21  USERS WOULD WANT TO HAVE TWO PLATFORMS, NAMELY AN



        22  OPERATING SYSTEM AND A MIDDLEWARE LAYER LIKE THE BROWSER?



        23  A.   CAN--YOU REPHRASE THAT.



        24  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN DOCUMENTS THAT DESCRIBE, IN SUBSTANCE,



        25  THE NOTION THAT ADDING ANOTHER PLATFORM SO THAT A PC HAS�
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         1  TWO AT THE SAME TIME IS AN INHIBITOR TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF



         2  THIS KIND OF A THREAT?



         3  A.   I THINK I HAVE SEEN REFERENCES TO THE QUESTION OF THE



         4  EXTENT TO WHICH, SHOULD WE SAY, HAVING A SECOND PLATFORM



         5  WHICH--OR A SECOND OPERATING SYSTEM WHICH COULD



         6  SHARE--WHICH COULD SHARE APPLICATIONS WITH WINDOWS, BUT IN



         7  A WAY IN WHICH THERE WOULD BE SOMETHING IN BETWEEN WINDOWS



         8  AND THE OPERATING SYSTEM LIKE A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE ADDS



         9  A LEVEL.  I THINK THAT HAS BEEN PART OF MICROSOFT'S



        10  ARGUMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE DEBATE OVER WHETHER THE BEST



        11  WAY TO GO WAS A CROSS-PLATFORM SOLUTION OR TO HAVE A



        12  SPECIALIZED SET OF APPLICATIONS THAT WORK ONLY BEST OR



        13  BEST OR ONLY ON WINDOWS.



        14  Q.   I WILL TRY ONE MORE TIME.  MAYBE I'M NOT BEING CLEAR



        15  HERE.



        16  A.   I'M SORRY.



        17  Q.   THE QUESTION IS WHETHER THAT ADDED LEVEL, AS YOU JUST



        18  DESCRIBED IT, WHETHER YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING THAT



        19  MICROSOFT REGARDS THAT AS AN INHIBITOR TO THE DEVELOPMENT



        20  OF THIS ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM THREAT THAT YOU TESTIFIED



        21  ABOUT, BECAUSE, TO PUT IT COLLOQUIALLY, WHO NEEDS TO HAVE



        22  TWO PLATFORMS ON ONE MACHINE?



        23  A.   WELL, IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT MICROSOFT BELIEVES



        24  THAT THERE IS A--THAT A COST TO--IN THE PARTICULAR FORM



        25  YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT, OF HAVING A TRUE CROSS-PLATFORM�
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         1  SYSTEM, AS OPPOSED TO HAVING SYSTEMS WHICH ARE SPECIFIC TO



         2  INDIVIDUAL OPERATING SYSTEMS.  AND THE ARGUMENT IS THAT



         3  YOU CAN EITHER HAVE APPLICATIONS THAT SPECIALIZE IN EACH



         4  INDIVIDUAL OPERATING SYSTEM, OR YOU CAN HAVE APPLICATIONS



         5  THAT ARE CROSS-PLATFORMED.



         6           AN ECONOMIST CANNOT TELL YOU THAT ONE IS BETTER



         7  THAN THE OTHER.  THAT, YOU KNOW, AS ECONOMISTS, ALL WE



         8  COULD SAY IS, THE ISSUE IS HOW DO WE FINALLY DECIDE



         9  WHETHER OR NOT YET ANOTHER PLATFORM IS THE PROBLEM, AND



        10  THE ONLY WAY TO FIND THAT OUT IS BY RUNNING A LEVEL



        11  PLAYING FIELD MARKET TEST.



        12  Q.   WE WILL COME TO THAT, AS WELL.



        13           THIS DOCUMENT WAS ENTITLED "DT OS PRICING



        14  STRATEGY"; RIGHT?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   DO YOU RECALL WHAT MR. KEMPIN SAID MICROSOFT'S



        17  PRICING STRATEGY SHOULD BE BECAUSE OF ALL THESE THREATS



        18  THAT WE HAVE BEEN TALKING ABOUT?



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  COULD YOU TURN BACK ONE PAGE, PLEASE, AND I



        21  WILL READ IT TO YOU.



        22  A.   YES.



        23  Q.   THERE IS ONE STRATEGY ITEM; IS THAT CORRECT?



        24  A.   WELL, THE ONE RIGHT ABOVE IT IS THE THING, I THIN,



        25  THAT YOU'RE REFERRING TO.�
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         1  Q.   NO, I'M ASKING YOU ABOUT WHAT THE STRATEGY IS.



         2  A.   OH.



         3  Q.   AND HE SAYS, "AVOID PRICE INCREASES FOR DESKTOP



         4  OPERATING SYSTEMS OVER THE NEXT TWO TO THREE YEARS, AND BE



         5  SENSITIVE TO NT PRICING AND PREPARED TO REVISIT AS WE GO



         6  ALONG."



         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         8  A.   YES.



         9  Q.   AND THAT IS, IN FACT, WHAT HAS HAPPENED, IS IT NOT?



        10  A.   NO.



        11  Q.   IT'S NOT?



        12  A.   I THINK IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT IF YOU LOOK AT THE



        13  PRICE OF WINDOWS 98--THIS WAS WRITTEN IN 97--THAT THE



        14  PRICE, CERTAINLY THE NOMINAL PRICE, OF WINDOWS TO OEM'S



        15  HAS, IN FACT, INCREASED, ALTHOUGH THE AMOUNT OF DATA WE



        16  GOT ON THIS IS PRETTY LIMITED.



        17  Q.   IT'S, IN FACT, DECREASED?



        18  A.   INCREASED.



        19  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW MUCH YOU THINK IT HAS INCREASED, SIR?



        20  A.   IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING FROM A VERY--FROM A SET OF



        21  MICROSOFT DATA WHICH I GATHER HAS ONLY JUST BEEN PROVIDED



        22  TO THE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT VERY RECENTLY, AND IT HASN'T



        23  BEEN THIS THOROUGHLY EXPLORED, BUT FROM MY CONVERSATIONS



        24  WITH DR. OWEN, WHO IS APPARENTLY IN THE PROCESS IN LOOKING



        25  AT THAT DATA, HER RESULTS, TO DATE, SHOW THAT MICROSOFT'S�
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         1  PRICE OF ITS OPERATING SYSTEM TO THE DESKTOP, YOU KNOW,



         2  HAS INCREASED PRETTY SUBSTANTIALLY OVER THE LAST TWO



         3  YEARS.



         4  Q.   OKAY.  HAVE YOU SEEN THE RESULTS OF DR. OWEN'S



         5  ANALYSIS?



         6  A.   NO, JUST CONVERSATIONS.



         7  Q.   CAN YOU TELL ME WHO DR. OWEN IS.



         8  A.   SHE'S IN THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.



         9  Q.   HAVE YOU EVEN--



        10  A.   SHE'S AN ECONOMIST.



        11  Q.   I'M SORRY.  HAVE YOU SEEN ANY OF HER DATA?



        12  A.   NO.



        13  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT SHE IS GOING TO BE PROVIDING



        14  HER DATA TO DR. FISHER PRIOR TO HIS TESTIMONY?



        15  A.   NO, BUT--I MEAN, I DON'T KNOW THAT.



        16  Q.   AND YOU HAVE DONE NO ANALYSIS OF THE DATA, YOU CAN'T



        17  VERIFY IT.  YOU DON'T KNOW HOW SHE WENT ABOUT HER



        18  BUSINESS; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?



        19  A.   YES, IT'S JUST MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THE DATA HAS



        20  JUST BEEN RECEIVED RECENTLY, AND THESE ARE PRELIMINARY



        21  RESULTS.



        22           I DON'T KNOW, YOU KNOW, HOW FIRM SHE IS IN THESE



        23  RESULTS, BUT THAT'S THE ONLY INFORMATION THAT I KNOW OF



        24  THAT'S AVAILABLE TO ME ON WHAT'S BEEN HAPPENING TO THE



        25  PRICES OF DESKTOP OPERATING SYSTEMS AS OVER, AS MR. KEMPIN�
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         1  WOULD SAY, THE NEXT TWO TO THREE YEARS.



         2           SO, IN RESPONSE TO YOUR QUESTION, IF, INDEED,



         3  THAT DATA TURNS OUT TO, IN FACT, SUPPORT THE CONCLUSIONS



         4  THAT HAVE BEEN BROUGHT TO DATE, THEN, IN FACT, MR. KEMPIN



         5  HAS NOT AVOIDED INCREASING PRICES OF DESKTOP OPERATING



         6  SYSTEMS DURING THE NEXT TWO TO THREE YEARS.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  SO, YOU THINK SOMEONE COUNTERMANDED HIS



         8  RECOMMENDATION; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE TELLING ME, SIR?



         9  A.   NO, I'M JUST SAYING THAT, APPARENTLY, BACK IN WHAT WE



        10  NOW ESTABLISHED AS DECEMBER OF 1997, HE TOLD MR. GATES



        11  THAT HE DIDN'T ADVISE INCREASING THE PRICE OF DESKTOP



        12  OPERATING SYSTEMS.



        13           I MEAN, THIS DOCUMENT IS WHAT IT IS, AND THE



        14  FACTS, AS THEY TURN OUT, ARE WHAT THEY TURN OUT TO BE.



        15  Q.   OKAY.  YOU MADE A REFERENCE TO THE APPLICATIONS



        16  BARRIER TO ENTRY, AND WE HAD SOME DISCUSSION ABOUT THAT



        17  EARLIER TODAY; IS THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   NOW, ON PAGE--ON PARAGRAPH 54 OF YOUR TESTIMONY,



        20  WHICH IS ON PAGE 24 AND 25, THAT'S WHERE YOU TALK ABOUT



        21  THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY; CORRECT?



        22  A.   YES.



        23  Q.   OKAY.  I HAVE THE RIGHT PLACE IN YOUR TESTIMONY;



        24  RIGHT, SIR?



        25  A.   YES.  I THINK STARTING--�
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         1  Q.   ON PAGE 24.



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   AND PARTICULARLY ON PAGE 24, YOU USE THE TERM, IN



         4  QUOTATION MARKS, "POSITIVE FEEDBACK."  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         5  A.   YES.



         6  Q.   COULD YOU TELL THE COURT WHAT YOU MEAN BY POSITIVE



         7  FEEDBACK IN THIS CONTEXT.



         8  A.   IN THIS CONTEXT?



         9  Q.   YES.



        10  A.   YES.  POSITIVE FEEDBACK, IN THIS CONTEXT, IS THE



        11  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN TWO COMPLIMENTARY PRODUCTS, BOTH OF



        12  WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO SCALE ECONOMIES.  IN THIS CONTEXT,



        13  THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK IS THAT YOU BUILD AN OPERATING



        14  SYSTEM.  THE DEMAND FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEM DEPENDS ON



        15  THE NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS WITH WHICH THAT OPERATING



        16  SYSTEM CAN WORK.  BUT THE SUPPLY OF THESE APPLICATIONS



        17  DEPEND ON THE NUMBER OF OPERATING SYSTEMS ON WHICH THOSE



        18  APPLICATIONS CAN BE USED.



        19           SO YOU HAVE, IF YOU LIKE, A FEEDBACK PROBLEM OR



        20  SOMETIMES CALLED A NETWORK EFFECT OR POSITIVE FEEDBACK



        21  EFFECT IN WHICH THE MORE BROADLY--THE HIGHER THE MARKET



        22  SHARE, IF YOU LIKE, OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM IN A MARKET



        23  WHERE APPLICATIONS ARE NOT COMPATIBLE ACROSS THOSE



        24  OPERATING SYSTEMS, THE GREATER THE INCENTIVE, AS WE



        25  DISCUSSED EARLIER, FOR A DEVELOPER'S WRITERS TO WRITE�
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         1  APPLICATIONS FOR THAT OPERATING SYSTEM.



         2           AND THEN, IN TURN, THE FEEDBACK IS THE LARGER THE



         3  NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS THAT ARE WRITTEN, THE GREATER THE



         4  VALUE TO CONSUMERS OF THAT OPERATING SYSTEM, AND SO ON AND



         5  SO ON.



         6  Q.   CAN POSITIVE FEEDBACK, AS YOU, AS AN ECONOMIST,



         7  UNDERSTAND IT, EVER WORK AGAINST THE INTERESTS OF THE



         8  INCUMBENT OR THE FIRM PRODUCING THE MOST POPULAR SOFTWARE



         9  PRODUCT?



        10  A.   POSITIVE FEEDBACK, IN THIS CONTEXT, IS A FUNCTION OF



        11  MARKET SHARE, SO THAT YOU GET THE GREATEST INCENTIVE THE



        12  LARGER YOUR MARKET SHARE.  IF YOU INCREASE YOUR MARKET



        13  SHARE, YOU WILL GET MORE FEEDBACK; THAT'S TRUE.  BUT AT



        14  ALL TIMES, IF YOU HAVE AN EIGHTY PERCENT SHARE, YOU GET



        15  MORE FEEDBACK THAN AT A TEN PERCENT SHARE.  SO, GOING FROM



        16  TEN TO TWENTY GETS YOU MORE FEEDBACK, BUT YOU'RE GOING TO



        17  HAVE MORE FEEDBACK AT NINETY THAN YOU WILL AT TEN.



        18  Q.   NOW, YOU QUOTE IN THIS PARAGRAPH--I'M TURNING ON TO



        19  PAGE 25 NOW, SIR--YOU SAY, "IT IS WELL RECOGNIZED BY



        20  MICROSOFT" BOTH ITS POSITIVE FEEDBACK CONCEPT IN THIS



        21  APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY CONCEPT, AND YOU QUOTE A



        22  DOCUMENT WRITTEN BY DR. NATHAN MYHRVOLD.  DO YOU SEE THAT,



        23  SIR?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   AND YOU MENTIONED DR. MYHRVOLD'S NAME BEFORE WHEN I�
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         1  ASKED YOU WHO'S RECOGNIZED THIS APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO



         2  ENTRY.  DO YOU RECALL THAT TESTIMONY?



         3  A.   YES.



         4  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW WHERE THE QUOTE WHICH IS CONTAINED IN



         5  PARAGRAPH 54 COMES FROM, SIR?



         6  A.   YES.  IT'S GOT AN INTERESTING TITLE, WHICH ESCAPES ME



         7  AT THE MOMENT.  THE--BUT PERHAPS YOU WILL REMEMBER IT.



         8  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT IT WAS A DRAFT ARTICLE THAT



         9  MR.--THAT DR. MYHRVOLD HAD PREPARED?



        10  A.   YES.



        11  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW THE DRAFT MAY HAVE BEEN MODIFIED



        12  BETWEEN THE FIRST DRAFT THAT YOU QUOTE AND THE FINAL



        13  PUBLICATION?



        14  A.   THAT'S ALWAYS POSSIBLE, YES.



        15  Q.   THE QUESTION WAS:  DO YOU KNOW HOW IT MAY HAVE BEEN



        16  MODIFIED?



        17  A.   OH, NO.  THE DRAFT THAT I SAW WAS THE LAST VERSION



        18  THAT I SAW.  I HAVEN'T SEEN ANY SUBSEQUENT EDITIONS OR



        19  VERSIONS.



        20  Q.   AND YOU QUOTED THE DOCUMENT, PRESUMABLY, NOT BECAUSE



        21  YOU THOUGHT IT HAD WORDS THAT FIT WITH YOUR OPINION, BUT



        22  BECAUSE YOU AGREED WITH IT; IS THAT CORRECT?



        23  A.   THE WHOLE DOCUMENT?



        24  Q.   AT LEAST THE PORTION YOU QUOTED.



        25  A.   I AGREED WITH THE PORTION THAT WAS QUOTED, YES.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOU THOUGHT THAT AT LEAST A PORTION THAT YOU



         2  QUOTED CAPTURED A SALIENT FEATURE OF THE ECONOMICS OF THE



         3  SOFTWARE AND, PARTICULARLY, THE OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS;



         4  IS THAT CORRECT?



         5  A.   WELL, DR. MYHRVOLD, IS, IF YOU'RE READING LARGE



         6  AMOUNTS OF E-MAIL, IS CERTAINLY THE MOST INTERESTING



         7  PERSON TO READ.



         8           HE ALSO LIKES ECONOMISTS SINCE HE SPEAKS VERY



         9  FAVORABLY OF BRIAN ARTHUR.



        10           IT RESONATES MORE WITH ME THAN MOST.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  WELL, LET ME TAKE A LOOK AT THAT DOCUMENT.



        12           MR. LACOVARA:  NOW, YOUR HONOR, THIS, TOO, IS NOT



        13  YET IN EVIDENCE, BUT MY UNDERSTANDING IS IT'S GOVERNMENT



        14  EXHIBIT 994, AND I DON'T WANT TO GET IN THE HABIT OF



        15  MOVING IN GOVERNMENT EXHIBITS, BUT I CERTAINLY WOULDN'T



        16  OBJECT IF MR. SCHWARTZ CHOSE TO DO SO AT THIS MOMENT.



        17           MR. SCHWARTZ:  WE WOULD BE HAPPY TO OFFER IT INTO



        18  EVIDENCE.



        19           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 994 IS ADMITTED.



        20                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 994 WAS



        21                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        22  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        23  Q.   AND MY COLLEAGUE, MR. SMITH, WILL HAND YOU A COPY OF



        24  994.



        25  A.   AH, "TELLING IT LIKE IT IS."�
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         1  Q.   OKAY.  COULD YOU TURN TO THE FIRST PAGE AFTER THE



         2  COVER PAGE, "TELLING IT LIKE IT IS."



         3  A.   YES.



         4  Q.   THIS IS THE DOCUMENT THAT YOU QUOTE IN PARAGRAPH 54



         5  TO WHICH YOU REFER IN FOOTNOTE 29; CORRECT?



         6  A.   IT MUST BE, YES.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE 267



         8  OF THIS DOCUMENT--THAT WOULD BE THE NEXT PAGE--WHERE HE



         9  SAYS, "THE ECONOMIC DYNAMICS OF SOFTWARE."



        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        11  A.   YES.



        12  Q.   AND THAT'S WHAT DR. MYHRVOLD, THIS FRIEND OF



        13  ECONOMISTS, WAS WRITING ABOUT HERE; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        14  A.   YES.



        15  Q.   AND YOU SEE THE FIRST SUBHEADING THERE?



        16  A.   "THE MONOPOLY THAT ISN'T."



        17  Q.   "THE MONOPOLY THAT ISN'T."



        18           DO YOU AGREE THAT THAT IS AN APT CHARACTERIZATION



        19  OF THE MICROSOFT CORPORATION?



        20  A.   NO.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  WELL, LET'S SEE WHAT ELSE DR. MYHRVOLD SAYS



        22  AFTER HE DISCUSSES THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY AND



        23  THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK.  AND JUST FOR REFERENCE, IF YOU



        24  LOOK ON PAGE THREE, YOU WILL SEE A DISCUSSION OF POSITIVE



        25  FEEDBACK.�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, GOING TO PAGE FOUR, I WOULD LIKE TO ASK



         3  YOU ABOUT A NUMBER OF OTHER STATEMENTS THAT DR. MYHRVOLD



         4  MAKES IN THIS DOCUMENT.  CAN WE SEE THE FIRST PARAGRAPH,



         5  PLEASE.



         6  A.   ON PAGE FOUR?



         7  Q.   YES.



         8           NOW, DR. MYHRVOLD WRITES, "ANY ENTRANT IN A



         9  TECHNOLOGICALLY ADVANCING MARKET MUST REINVENT ITSELF AND



        10  ITS PRODUCT LINE ON A CONTINUAL BASIS BECAUSE ANY



        11  INDIVIDUAL PRODUCT WILL BE OBSOLETE, EVEN TO CURRENT



        12  CUSTOMERS, IN A SHORT PERIOD OF TIME."



        13           DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT STATEMENT AS A DESCRIPTION



        14  OF THE OPERATING SYSTEMS BUSINESS, SIR?



        15  A.   I THINK WHAT HE'S SAYING SAYS--THE TERM "ENTRANT" IS



        16  USED HERE.  I'M NOT QUITE SURE WHETHER HE MEANT "ENTRANT"



        17  OR "INCUMBENT."  I THINK IT'S TRUE THAT IF YOU ARE AN



        18  ENTRANT OR INCUMBENT IN A TECHNOLOGICALLY ADVANCING



        19  MARKET, YOU HAVE TO CONTINUE TO ADVANCE RAPIDLY



        20  TECHNOLOGICALLY.  OTHERWISE, IF YOU'RE AN INCUMBENT, EVEN



        21  IF YOU'RE A MONOPOLIST, YOU WILL LOSE MONOPOLY POWER.  THE



        22  POINT WE WERE MAKING BEFORE IS THAT WOULD NOT BE A



        23  RATIONAL ACT.



        24  Q.   LET ME CONTINUE, THEN.  THE NEXT STATEMENT,



        25  "DEPENDING ON THE LEGAL STATUS AND COMPLEXITY OF YOUR�
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         1  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, COMPETITORS MAY ALSO HAVE THE



         2  OPTION OF LEGALLY CLONING YOUR TECHNOLOGY SO THAT IN THE



         3  KEY AREA OF COMPATIBILITY, THEY ARE JUST AS GOOD AS YOU



         4  ARE.  THE RATE AT WHICH SOFTWARE ASSETS CAN BE CLONED IS



         5  USUALLY EVEN FASTER THAN THE RATE AT WHICH IT BECOMES



         6  OBSOLETE."



         7           DO YOU AGREE WITH THOSE SENTENCES, SIR?



         8  A.   WELL, THE RATE OF--IN THIS CONTEXT, WHAT WE ARE



         9  TALKING ABOUT IN TERMS OF CLONING A TECHNOLOGY, AND AS I



        10  UNDERSTAND WHAT DR. MYHRVOLD IS REFERRING TO HERE, WOULD



        11  BE THE CREATION OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM THAT HAD THE SAME



        12  SET OF API'S AS, SAY, WINDOWS 98.



        13           ASSUMING I'M CORRECT IN THAT, THE EVIDENCE THAT I



        14  HAVE SEEN AND I THINK THE STATEMENTS THAT EVERYBODY THAT



        15  HAS MADE IS THAT WITH RESPECT TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM,



        16  CERTAINLY AT THIS POINT, CLONING IN THIS SENSE, IN THE



        17  SENSE OF DEVELOPING AN OPERATING SYSTEM WHICH WOULD



        18  PROVIDE THE COMPLETE SET OF API'S THAT IS IN WINDOWS 98,



        19  IS PHYSICALLY ALMOST IMPOSSIBLE AND, AS A PRACTICAL



        20  BUSINESS MATTER, IS NOT REASONABLE.  I THINK THAT'S THE



        21  TESTIMONY OF A FAIR NUMBER OF PEOPLE HERE.



        22           THIS WAS WRITTEN IN 1994, SO PERHAPS--PERHAPS



        23  DR. MYHRVOLD--OR 1993--CAN BE EXCUSED FOR NOT KNOWING AT



        24  THE TIME JUST HOW COMPLEX THAT JOB IS GOING TO BE.



        25           BUT IF YOU ASK THE QUESTION, IS THAT TRUE TODAY�
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         1  IN TERMS OF THE--THAT CLONING YOUR TECHNOLOGY SO THAT IN



         2  THE AREA OF KEY COMPATIBILITY TO BE JUST AS GOOD AS YOU



         3  ARE, IS THAT A FEASIBLE SOLUTION, I THINK THE ANSWER TODAY



         4  IS NO, IT'S NOT.



         5  Q.   AND DOESN'T THAT STATEMENT YOU JUST MADE APPLY TO THE



         6  NOTION THAT A BROWSER CAN BE A SUBSTITUTE PLATFORM FOR



         7  WINDOWS, THAT IT COULD NOT REPLICATE THE API'S IN WINDOWS



         8  NEARLY AS FAST AS WOULD BE NECESSARY TO BE A CREDIBLE



         9  SUBSTITUTE?



        10  A.   I THINK WHAT YOU COULD GET IS--OR AT LEAST TO SOME



        11  EXTENT SPECULATING, BUT BACK IN THE PERIOD WHEN THE



        12  BROWSER, BY ITSELF, WAS THOUGHT OF AS A STAND-ALONE



        13  SUBSTITUTE FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEM, IT WOULD BE WITH



        14  RESPECT TO SPECIALIZED APPLICATIONS, SO THAT YOU COULD



        15  BUILD A BROWSER, YOU WOULD HAVE API'S THAT WOULD RELATE



        16  PARTICULARLY TO INTERNET FUNCTIONS AND APPLICATIONS.  AND



        17  I DON'T WANT TO CALL IT NECESSARILY A NICHE PRODUCT, BUT



        18  PEOPLE WHO JUST WANTED TO USE THOSE APPLICATIONS COULD, IN



        19  FACT, USE THE BROWSER WITH THE API'S, YOU KNOW, AS, IN



        20  EFFECT, A SUBSTITUTE FOR AN OPERATING SYSTEM FOR SOME



        21  FUNCTIONS.



        22           I THINK THE ISSUE AT THE TIME WAS, IS IT POSSIBLE



        23  THAT THAT MIGHT GROW EVENTUALLY INTO A SUBSTITUTE FOR A



        24  LARGER AND LARGER PERCENT.



        25           I THINK IT'S NOT A QUESTION OF BEING, YOU KNOW,�
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         1  ARE YOU A SUBSTITUTE, ARE YOU NOT A SUBSTITUTE.  IT'S, ARE



         2  YOU, YOU KNOW--YOU'RE A SUBSTITUTE FOR AN INCREASING SHARE



         3  OF THE USER BASE.



         4  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOU BELIEVE THAT BROWSERS DISTRIBUTING



         5  THESE WONDERFUL CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES ARE A



         6  SUBSTITUTE FOR AN INCREASING SHARE OF THE USER BASE FOR



         7  WINDOWS 98; IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   THERE IS AN INCREASE IN USE OF JAVA IN APPLICATIONS.



         9  THE POINT IS AS AND IF THE NUMBER AND SCOPE OF WHAT WE



        10  WOULD CALL PURE JAVA APPLICATION SPREADS, AS THAT HAPPENS,



        11  AN INCREASING NUMBER OF USERS MAY BE ABLE TO SIMPLY DO



        12  WITHOUT WINDOWS ENTIRELY.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  SO, YOU REGARD THE BROWSER DISTRIBUTING JAVA



        14  APPLICATIONS AND JAVA TECHNOLOGIES AS AN INCREASINGLY



        15  VIABLE SUBSTITUTE FOR WINDOWS 98.  THAT WAS MY QUESTION,



        16  SIR.



        17           AND THE ANSWER TO THAT QUESTION IS YES, I TAKE



        18  IT?



        19  A.   I THINK WE HAVE TO ASSUME THAT THE BROWSER--THAT THE



        20  INDEPENDENT BROWSER MARKET THRIVES.



        21           NOW, OF COURSE, IF, FOR SOME REASON, THE



        22  INDEPENDENT BROWSER MARKET DOES NOT THRIVE, THEN, OF



        23  COURSE, THAT THREAT IS NO LONGER THERE.



        24  Q.   DO YOU THINK THAT FACT, THE FACT THAT YOU BELIEVE



        25  THAT BROWSERS DISTRIBUTING CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS, TO�
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         1  USE YOUR TERMS, ARE A POTENTIAL, INDEED AN INCREASING



         2  VIABLE SUBSTITUTE FOR WINDOWS, HAS ANY RELEVANCE AT ALL TO



         3  THE WAY YOU HAVE DEFINED THE RELEVANT PRODUCT MARKETS IN



         4  THIS CASE, SIR?



         5  A.   NOT UNDER THE MERGER GUIDELINES' DEFINITION OF



         6  PRODUCTS.  IF I THINK I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE ASKING ME,



         7  IS IT--IS THE FACT THAT THERE IS ANOTHER PRODUCT OUT THERE



         8  THAT MAY, AT SOME FUTURE TIME, BE A SUBSTITUTE AND MIGHT



         9  TODAY BE A PARTIAL SUBSTITUTE, DOES THAT MEAN IT SHOULD BE



        10  INCLUDED IN THE MARKET.



        11           AND THE POINT THAT I THINK--ALL I WANT TO MAKE



        12  HERE IS, WHEN YOU DEFINE A MARKET FOR ANTITRUST PURPOSES,



        13  YOU DO NOT DEFINE THE MARKET AS INCLUDING EVERYTHING THAT



        14  IS A POSSIBLE SUBSTITUTE.  IT'S OTHERWISE KNOWN AS THE



        15  KITCHEN-SINK APPROACH.  YOU SIMPLY ADD ENOUGH SUBSTITUTES



        16  UNTIL YOU GET TO A GROUP SUCH THAT A HYPOTHETICAL



        17  MONOPOLIST OVER THAT GROUP OF PRODUCTS WOULD HAVE A



        18  MONOPOLY.



        19  Q.   HOW ABOUT IF YOU ADD WHAT HAD SAID IS THE MOST LIKELY



        20  THREAT TO A WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM AND SOMETHING WHICH I



        21  THINK YOU HAVE JUST TOLD ME ACTUALLY COMPETES ALREADY WITH



        22  WINDOWS AND WILL BE AN INCREASING COMPETITOR TO WINDOWS



        23  OVER TIME?



        24  A.   NO.



        25  Q.   TELL ME WHY WE CAN DEAL WITH THEM LEAVING ASIDE THE�
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         1  MERGER GUIDELINES FOR A SECOND, FOR THE MOMENT, AS



         2  SEPARATE MARKETS IN ANY MEANINGFUL SENSE.



         3  A.   SURE.  THE FIRST PART, I THINK, IS THE QUESTION OF IS



         4  SOMETHING A POTENTIAL ENTRANCE OR MIGHT HAPPEN IN SEVERAL



         5  YEARS.



         6           SO, ANALYTICALLY, THE QUESTION IS WHAT IS THE



         7  EFFECT ON CURRENT BEHAVIOR OF A POSSIBILITY OF AN ENTRANT



         8  OR A CHANNEL--A CHALLENGE TO A MONOPOLY POWER IN THE



         9  FUTURE.  AND I CAN GO INTO THAT IN SOME DETAIL.  I WILL



        10  JUST SHORTEN IT BY SAYING THAT UNDER THE PARTICULAR



        11  ECONOMIC CONDITIONS IN THIS MARKET, I WOULD NOT EXPECT THE



        12  PROSPECT OF SUCH A THREAT IN THE FUTURE TO SIGNIFICANTLY



        13  AFFECT CURRENT PRICING BY MICROSOFT, AND I CAN EXPLAIN



        14  WHY.



        15           THE SECOND QUESTION YOU--I THINK YOU'RE ASKING



        16  IS, LET US SUPPOSE THAT THAT PRODUCT IS ALREADY A



        17  SUBSTITUTE FOR AT LEAST SOME USERS.  THEN, SHOULD IT BE



        18  INCLUDED IN THE MARKET?  AND MY ANSWER TO THAT, UNDER THE



        19  MERGER GUIDELINES AND ELSEWHERE, IS YOU DON'T INCLUDE



        20  EVERY POSSIBLE SUBSTITUTE.  WHAT YOU DO IS YOU ASK WHAT IS



        21  THE GROUP OF PRODUCTS OVER WHICH A MONOPOLY WOULD, IN



        22  FACT, BE PROFITABLE.



        23           SO THE ANSWER, I THINK, TO BOTH OF THOSE



        24  QUESTIONS IS NO.



        25  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S GO ON TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH OF�
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         1  DR. MYHRVOLD'S ANALYSIS OF THE ECONOMICS OF THE SOFTWARE



         2  INDUSTRY.



         3           HE THEN SAYS, "AS A GENERAL RULE OF THUMB, A



         4  PRODUCT IN THE COMPUTER INDUSTRY, WHETHER HARDWARE OR



         5  SOFTWARE, IS ONLY AS STRONG AS ITS CURRENT VERSION.  A



         6  SINGLE STRONG RELEASE, OR A WEAK ONE, CAN MAKE OR BREAK A



         7  PRODUCT OR COMPANY."



         8           DO YOU AGREE WITH THOSE STATEMENTS,



         9  DR. WARREN-BOULTON?



        10  A.   I THINK THAT'S TRUE FOR MANY SOFTWARE PRODUCTS, YES.



        11  IT DOES NOT APPEAR TO BE TRUE IN THE--FOR WINDOWS, FOR



        12  MICROSOFT.



        13           BUT, AS I SAY, I'M NOT A TECHIE, BUT IT'S MY



        14  UNDERSTANDING THAT MICROSOFT HAS RELEASED A LARGE NUMBER



        15  OF PRODUCTS WHICH WERE NOT, SHALL WE SAY, VERY WELL



        16  RECEIVED AT FIRST, BUT THEY HAVE PERSEVERED.



        17  Q.   OKAY.  IN MOST CASES, "A SINGLE VERSION IS MARKETED



        18  BETWEEN ONE OR TWO YEARS UNTIL IT IS REPLACED, SO THERE IS



        19  LITTLE TIME TO REST ON ONE'S LAURELS."



        20           DO YOU AGREE THAT, IN GENERAL, THERE IS LITTLE



        21  TIME TO REST ON ONE'S LAURELS IN THE SOFTWARE BUSINESS



        22  TODAY?



        23  A.   I CONSIDER ALMOST ALL OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY TO BE



        24  HIGHLY COMPETITIVE.  AND IN A HIGHLY COMPETITIVE INDUSTRY,



        25  YOU CAN'T REST ON YOUR LAURELS FOR--YOU HAVE LITTLE TIME�

                                                           35



         1  TO REST ON YOUR LAURELS BEFORE YOU LOSE.



         2           MY POINT WOULD BE, EVEN IF YOU HAVE A MONOPOLY,



         3  YOU CAN'T REST ON YOUR LAURELS FOREVER.  YOU CAN CERTAINLY



         4  REST ON THEM LONGER THAN IF YOU FACE--IN A COMPETITIVE



         5  MARKET, YES.



         6  Q.   DO YOU AGREE, THEN, WITH THE STATEMENT, "THE



         7  STRONGEST PRODUCTS MIGHT HAVE A BIT MORE LEEWAY, BUT



         8  DESPITE ALL OF THE ADVANTAGES THAT ACCRUE TO THE INCUMBENT



         9  LEADER, NO PRODUCT COULD EXPECT TO SURVIVE TWO CONSECUTIVE



        10  BAD VERSIONS, AT LEAST IF ITS COMPETITIVE IS AWAKE"?



        11           DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT STATEMENT?



        12  A.   THAT'S VERY SPECIFIC, NO PRODUCTS COULD EXPECT TO



        13  SURVIVE TWO CONSECUTIVE BAD VERSIONS.  I WOULD HAVE TO



        14  THINK ABOUT THAT.



        15  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT, "CONVERSELY, IT



        16  TAKES TWO CONSECUTIVE GOOD VERSIONS AND, THUS, THREE TO



        17  FOUR YEARS TO ESTABLISH A NEWCOMER"?



        18  A.   ONCE AGAIN, I THINK THIS IS DR. MYHRVOLD'S OPINION.



        19  I'M NOT SURE WHETHER THESE FACTS HAVE BEEN BORNE OUT BY



        20  SUBSEQUENT EXPERIENCE.



        21  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT OR NOT, SIR?



        22  A.   I HAVE NO OPINION ON THE STATEMENT.



        23  Q.   WERE YOU PRESENT YESTERDAY FOR THE TESTIMONY OF



        24  MR. SOYRING FROM IBM, SIR?



        25  A.   ONLY AT THE VERY END.�
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         1  Q.   DID YOU HEAR HIS TESTIMONY ON THE ACCEPTANCE OR



         2  NONACCEPTANCE OF OS/2 WITH REGARD TO OEM'S?



         3  A.   PROBABLY NOT, BUT...



         4  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THE FIRST VERSION OF



         5  OS/2 WARP KNOWN AS "OS/2 WARP VERSION ONE" DID NOT HAVE A



         6  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE?



         7  A.   I HAVE NO RECOLLECTION OF THAT, ONE WAY OR THE OTHER.



         8  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN ANY TESTIMONY FROM THE DEPOSITIONS



         9  WHICH YOU CITE THAT BEARS ON THAT POINT?



        10  A.   ON THE GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE FOR WARP?



        11  Q.   YES, SIR.



        12  A.   NO.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU RECALL MR. SOYRING TESTIFYING YESTERDAY



        14  THAT OS/2 WARP VERSION TWO HAD REQUIRED MORE MEMORY THAN



        15  SHIPPED WITH HOME USERS' MACHINES AT THE TIME IBM WAS



        16  TRYING TO SELL IT INTO THE HOME MARKET?  DO YOU RECALL



        17  THAT?



        18  A.   NO.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWLEDGE AS TO WHETHER OS/2



        20  WARP IS THE PERFECT EXAMPLE, OR A GOOD EXAMPLE, OF



        21  DR. MYHRVOLD'S STATEMENT THAT IT TAKES TWO CONSECUTIVE NEW



        22  VERSIONS--TWO CONSECUTIVE GOOD VERSIONS OR THREE OR FOUR



        23  YEARS TO ESTABLISH A NEWCOMER?



        24  A.   I'M SORRY?  YOU'RE USING OS/2 AS AN EXAMPLE--



        25  Q.   OF THE SENTENCE I JUST READ, SIR.�
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         1  A.   TO ESTABLISH A NEWCOMER?



         2  Q.   YES, SIR.



         3  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT THE EXPERIENCE



         4  DURING THESE YEARS.  THEY WOULD EITHER FIGHT



         5  DR. MYHRVOLD'S SPECULATION OR NOT FIT HIS--



         6  Q.   YOU HAVE NO OPINION RIGHT NOW, ONE WAY OR THE OTHER;



         7  IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   NO.  I THINK IF YOU WANT THAT OPINION, I HAVE TO GO



         9  BACK AND LOOK AT OR READ DR. SOYRING'S TESTIMONY.



        10  Q.   NOW, THE NEXT STATEMENT IN THIS DOCUMENT IS, QUOTE,



        11  WHEN A PRODUCT DOES FALL BEHIND, THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK



        12  CYCLE BECOMES A DOUBLE-EDGED SWORD BECAUSE IT WILL HELP



        13  THE CHALLENGER JUST AS SURELY AS IT HELPED THE LEADER IN A



        14  PREVIOUS ROUND.



        15  A.   UMM-HMM, YES.



        16  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT STATEMENT?



        17  A.   IF I UNDERSTAND WHAT HE'S SAYING THERE, IN THE SENSE



        18  IT MAKES SENSE, WHAT HE'S POSITING IS A SITUATION IN WHICH



        19  WE HAVE AN INCUMBENT WITH A VERY HIGH MARKET SHARE, 80



        20  PERCENT, AND THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK CYCLE IS WORKING ON HIS



        21  BEHALF.



        22           WE HAVEN'T--WE HAVE, IF I UNDERSTAND THIS



        23  PARAGRAPH, WE HAVE HIM MAKE A SERIES OF MISTAKES.  AND IN



        24  THE NEXT GENERATION, THERE IS SOMEBODY ELSE WHO COMES IN



        25  WHO GETS AN 80 PERCENT SHARE; HE HAS THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK�
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         1  CYCLE.



         2           I THINK THE POINT IS THAT THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK



         3  CYCLE IN THIS SITUATION HELPS THE INCUMBENT, OR HELPS



         4  WHOEVER HAS THE HIGHEST MARKET SHARE AT THAT MOMENT.  IF



         5  YOU HAVE EXITED THE MARKET OR LOST OR YOUR SHARE HAS



         6  FALLEN TO 20 PERCENT, THEN IT WORKS AGAINST YOU.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  SO THAT--DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT WITH



         8  REGARD TO MICROSOFT SPECIFICALLY, THAT IF MICROSOFT DID



         9  FALL BEHIND, THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK CYCLE WOULD WORK



        10  AGAINST MICROSOFT?



        11  A.   IF MICROSOFT FELL BEHIND TO THE POINT THAT IT HAD A



        12  SMALLER SHARE OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET THAN ITS



        13  COMPETITORS IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET, THEN IT WOULD



        14  BE GETTING LESS POSITIVE FEEDBACK THAN ITS COMPETITORS.



        15           SO, WE ARE TALKING ABOUT, I GATHER, SOMEBODY



        16  COMING IN AND GETTING MORE THAN A 50-PERCENT SHARE OF THE



        17  OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET.



        18  Q.   SURELY, YOUR TESTIMONY IS NOT THAT THE POSITIVE



        19  FEEDBACK CYCLE KICKS IN WHEN YOU HIT 51 PERCENT?



        20  A.   NO, YOU'RE MAKING A COMPARISON BETWEEN TWO.



        21           ALL I'M SAYING IS THAT IF THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK



        22  CYCLE CAN BE ROUGHLY MEASURED BY YOUR SHARE OF THE MARKET,



        23  WHICHEVER ONE HAS A HIGHER SHARE OF THE MARKET WINS, AND



        24  ASSUMING YOU HAD TWO--THAT'S WHY I PICKED BIGGER THAN



        25  SMALLER THAN 50 PERCENT BECAUSE THAT'S WHAT IT COMES OUT�
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         1  WITH.



         2  Q.   BEFORE WE MOVE ON IN THIS DOCUMENT, DO YOU THINK THAT



         3  THIS IS AN ACCURATE STATEMENT OF THE WAY MICROSOFT



         4  PERCEIVES THE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE MARKETS AND THE



         5  PRESSURES UNDER WHICH IT OPERATES?



         6  A.   I THINK THIS IS AN ACCURATE STATEMENT OF THE WAY THAT



         7  DR. MYHRVOLD WOULD LIKE AND SUGGESTED THAT MICROSOFT



         8  PRESENT ITS CASE.  I THINK IF YOU GO BACK TO THE FIRST



         9  PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT, "TELLING IT LIKE IT IS," THIS



        10  DOCUMENT IS ESSENTIALLY SOMETHING WHICH IS WRITTEN BY



        11  DR. MYHRVOLD.



        12           I THINK HE'S SUGGESTING, IN FACT, THAT WHILE HE



        13  WOULD WRITE IT, THAT IT SHOULD BE AUTHORED BY



        14  MR. GATES--I'M NOT SURE WHAT AUTHORING IN THIS CONTEXT



        15  MEANS--AND THAT THE PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT IS, IN FACT,



        16  TO TELL MICROSOFT'S STORY TO THE OUTSIDE WORLD.  I FOUND



        17  IT A VERY INTERESTING DOCUMENT, BUT I THINK WHEN YOU READ



        18  IT, YOU DO HAVE TO UNDERSTAND THAT THIS IS NOT A DOCUMENT



        19  THAT IS WRITTEN SORT OF IN CONFIDENTIALITY FROM ONE PERSON



        20  TO ANOTHER.  THIS IS A PROPOSED PIECE FOR PUBLIC



        21  CONSUMPTION, WHICH IS TO PROVIDE--I'M NOT SAYING IT'S A



        22  BRIEF, BUT IT IS TO ARGUE MICROSOFT'S POSITION IN FRONT OF



        23  THE WORLD.  AND I THINK THAT YOU WANT TO RECOGNIZE THAT



        24  WHEN YOU READ IT, THAT IT'S A--I DON'T WANT TO SAY A "PR



        25  PIECE," BUT IT IS--�
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         1  Q.   I APPRECIATE YOUR INTERPRETATION, BUT I WILL ASK THE



         2  QUESTION AGAIN.



         3  A.   UMM-HMM.



         4  Q.   DO YOU THINK THAT DR.--THAT MR.--THAT MICROSOFT



         5  BELIEVES THE STATEMENTS THAT DR. MYHRVOLD HAS INCLUDED



         6  THAT I HAVE READ TO YOU IN THE LAST FEW MOMENTS?



         7  A.   I CAN'T TELL YOU IF MICROSOFT BELIEVES THOSE AS



         8  WRITTEN.  I DO GET AN IMPRESSION, WHICH IS THE BEST THAT I



         9  CAN OFFER, FROM THE MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS THAT MICROSOFT IS



        10  CONSTANTLY CONCERNED ABOUT THE RATE OF TECHNICAL



        11  INNOVATION.  WHETHER THAT CONCERN IS JUSTIFIED OR NOT, THE



        12  EXTENT THAT IT IS--THERE IS A SLOGAN IN THIS INDUSTRY



        13  WHICH IS "ONLY THE PARANOID SURVIVE," BUT I THINK,



        14  CLEARLY, MICROSOFT IS BETTER OFF AND IS LIKELY TO REMAIN A



        15  MONOPOLY, HAVE MONOPOLY POWER FOR LONGER THE MORE IT



        16  BELIEVES THIS; THAT TO THE EXTENT THAT IT DOES BELIEVE



        17  THAT INNOVATION CONTINUES TO BE ESSENTIAL AND HAS TO RUN



        18  FAST, THE LONGER IT'S LIKELY TO STAY IN THE POSITION IT



        19  IS, AND IF IT LOSES THAT EDGE, IT COULD CONCEIVABLY LOSE



        20  OUT IN THE MARKET.



        21  Q.   SO, THIS IS A MONOPOLY UNDER WHICH THE MONOPOLIST



        22  ALWAYS HAS TO INNOVATE AND ALWAYS HAS TO BE PARANOID THAT



        23  IT'S FALLING BEHIND THE COMPETITION IN TERMS OF



        24  INNOVATION; IS THAT CORRECT?



        25  A.   I DON'T THINK YOU HAVE TO BE PARANOID TO BE A�
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         1  MONOPOLIST.  IT'S NOT AN ESSENTIAL COMPONENT.



         2  Q.   THAT WASN'T THE QUESTION I ASKED, SIR.  I ASKED YOU



         3  ABOUT THIS COMPANY AND THIS MARKET IN THIS CASE.



         4  A.   THIS COMPANY IN THIS MARKET, I THINK AS I SAID



         5  BEFORE, IF MICROSOFT WERE TO SIMPLY REST ON ITS LAURELS



         6  AND NOT INNOVATE, TO SIMPLY SHUT DOWN ITS R&D VERSION AND



         7  SAY, "HERE IS WINDOWS 98, WE ARE NEVER GOING TO CHANGE



         8  IT," THAT SHOULD IT DO THAT, IT WOULD PROBABLY LOSE ITS



         9  MONOPOLY POWER WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME PERIOD.  IT'S JUST



        10  THAT--WHY WOULD YOU EXPECT THEM TO DO THAT?  IT'S NOT A



        11  RATIONAL THING ANYONE BLOWING UP THE REDMOND FACTORY WOULD



        12  BE RATIONAL.



        13           THE POINT THAT I THINK THAT I, AS AN ECONOMIST,



        14  CAN MAKE HERE IS THERE IS NOT AN ECONOMIC THEORY THAT



        15  TELLS YOU THAT A MONOPOLIST WILL NOT INNOVATE.  THE



        16  ECONOMIC THEORY IS REALLY SIMPLE ON THIS.  IT SAY THE



        17  MONOPOLIST CHARGES HIGHER PRICES AND MAKES A LOT OF MONEY



        18  AND HAS A BIG PROFIT MARGIN.  THERE IS NOTHING IN ECONOMIC



        19  THEORY THAT SAYS IF AN INDUSTRY IS MONOPOLIZED, THE RATE



        20  OF TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE WILL EITHER SPEED UP OR SLOW DOWN.



        21  IT MAY DO EITHER, BUT THERE IS NO PARTICULAR BIAS HERE.



        22           AND SO, IF YOU ASK THE QUESTION, WOULD I EXPECT A



        23  MONOPOLY OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM TO CONTINUE TO INNOVATE,



        24  THE ANSWER IS, NOT ONLY WOULD I EXPECT IT TO CONTINUE TO



        25  INNOVATE IF IT'S A PROFIT-MAXIMIZING FIRM, BUT I WOULDN'T�
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         1  EXPECT THE FACT THAT IT WAS A MONOPOLY TO PARTICULARLY



         2  SYSTEMATICALLY AFFECT THE RATE OF INNOVATION.  IN



         3  PARTICULAR, I CAN'T DIAGNOSE WHETHER OR NOT IT'S A



         4  MONOPOLY OR NOT BASED ON WHETHER IT INNOVATES.  IT DOESN'T



         5  TELL YOU ANYTHING ABOUT WHETHER OR NOT IT'S A MONOPOLY.



         6  Q.   SO, TO COIN A PHRASE, YOU DON'T REGARD MICROSOFT AS



         7  LEADING THE QUIET LIFE OF THE MONOPOLIST, DO YOU, SIR?



         8  A.   NO, THAT'S A VERY FAMOUS QUOTE.  IT'S FROM JOHN



         9  HICKS, WHO WON THE NOBEL PRIZE.  I DON'T THINK IT WAS FOR



        10  THAT QUOTE, BUT HE DID WIN THE NOBEL PRIZE.  AND I HAVEN'T



        11  WON THE NOBEL PRIZE, AND SO I HAVE TO DEFER TO HIM.



        12           DR. HICKS, AS AN ENGLISH ECONOMIST, VERY FAMOUS,



        13  WRITING QUITE A FEW YEARS AGO PROBABLY ABOUT THE TIME I



        14  WAS BORN, ACTUALLY, I THINK, IS WHEN THAT QUOTE CAME



        15  ABOUT, AND HE WAS REFERRING TO A SITUATION IN WHICH YOU



        16  HAD FIRMS WHICH WERE--HAD MONOPOLY POSITIONS--REGULATED



        17  UTILITIES AND THINGS LIKE THAT--WHICH PARTICULARLY WEREN'T



        18  RUN BY THE SHAREHOLDERS.  SHAREHOLDERS WERE VERY DIFFUSE.



        19  AND WHAT YOU SAW WAS A PATTERN IN WHICH WHEN YOU SEE FIRMS



        20  WHERE THEY'RE NOT UNDER ANY PRESSURE FROM SHAREHOLDERS TO



        21  MAXIMIZE PROFITS AND THEY HAVE MONOPOLY POWER, THAT VERY



        22  OFTEN THE MANAGERS SAY, "WELL, I GUESS THE BEST OF ALL



        23  PROFITS IS THE QUIET LIFE."



        24           ACTUALLY, A NICE EXAMPLE OF THAT--I DON'T MEAN TO



        25  GO ON FOREVER--IS THE FAMOUS S&L, WHICH WAS THE�
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         1  THREE-THREE-THREE'S:  IN BY THREE AND OUT BY THREE AND AT



         2  THE GOLF COURSE.



         3           THERE ARE SITUATIONS IN WHICH MONOPOLY



         4  POWER--MONOPOLY POWER CAN BE USED TO GENERATE A LOT OF



         5  MONOPOLY PROFITS, BUT IF YOU WANT TO TAKE THOSE MONOPOLY



         6  PROFITS IN THE FORM OF INEFFICIENCY, THAT'S ALWAYS



         7  POSSIBLE, AND IT'S A CONCERN THAT ECONOMISTS HAVE WITH



         8  MONOPOLY, WHICH IS THAT THEY TEND TO BE--THEY TEND TO BE



         9  INEFFICIENT.



        10           BUT YOU HAVE--YOU HAVE A FIRM HERE WHICH THE



        11  SINGLE LARGEST SHAREHOLDER IS ALSO THE CEO AND DIRECTOR.



        12  IT JUST SEEMS TO ME THAT DRAWING A HICKSIAN-TYPE ANALOGY



        13  BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND A SORT OF SLEEPY ENGLISH PUBLIC



        14  UTILITY IS NOT GOING TO BE VERY APPROPRIATE.



        15  Q.   WELL, ON THAT NOTE, LET'S LOOK AT THE LAST PARAGRAPH



        16  OF DR. MYHRVOLD'S PAGE HERE.  WHAT HE WRITES IS, "THESE



        17  FACTORS EXPLAIN WHY HIGH MARKET SHARE IS CREATED BY



        18  POSITIVE FEEDBACK, LACK THE NEGATIVE SYMPTOMS OF A



        19  TRADITIONAL MONOPOLY."



        20           DOES THAT BEAR ANY RELATION TO WHAT YOU JUST



        21  TALKED ABOUT ABOUT THE HICKSIAN MONOPOLY VERSUS--



        22  A.   CAN YOU TELL ME WHERE ON HERE IT IS?



        23  Q.   IT'S THE VERY LAST PARAGRAPH ON THE SAME PAGE WE HAVE



        24  BEEN READING, PAGE 269, SIR.



        25           AND THE QUESTION IS:  READING THE FIRST SENTENCE�
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         1  OF THAT FINAL PARAGRAPH, I ASK IF YOU BELIEVE THAT THAT



         2  RELATES TO WHAT YOU WERE JUST TALKING ABOUT; NAMELY, THE



         3  CONTRAST BETWEEN WHAT YOU CALL A HICKSIAN MONOPOLY AND



         4  WHAT YOU THINK MICROSOFT IS.



         5  A.   I THINK THIS PARAGRAPH REFERS TO SOFTWARE IN GENERAL.



         6  AND AS I SAID, I THINK IT APPLIES TO MOST SOFTWARE MARKETS



         7  WHERE THERE ARE NOT SIGNIFICANT BARRIERS TO ENTRY.



         8           THIS IS AN INDUSTRY IN WHICH THERE ARE VERY LARGE



         9  BARRIERS, NOTABLY THE APPLICATIONS BARRIERS, SO WHILE I



        10  THINK THAT DR. MYHRVOLD'S LAST PARAGRAPH HERE PROBABLY



        11  PRETTY WELL DESCRIBES MOST SOFTWARE MARKETS, IT CLEARLY



        12  DOES NOT DESCRIBE SOFTWARE MARKETS WHERE THERE ARE LARGE



        13  BARRIERS TO ENTRY.



        14           NOW, IF DR. MYHRVOLD BELIEVES THAT THERE ARE NO



        15  LARGE BARRIERS TO ENTRY INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET,



        16  THEN THIS CONCLUSION WOULD APPLY.  BUT, IF YOU DON'T



        17  BELIEVE--I MEAN, THIS PARAGRAPH DESCRIBES THE FUNCTIONING



        18  OF A MARKET WHETHER THERE ARE NOT HIGH BARRIERS TO ENTRY.



        19  AND TO THE EXTENT THAT THERE ARE NOT HIGH BARRIERS TO



        20  ENTRY IN A SOFTWARE MARKET, I WOULD EXPECT TO SEE THIS



        21  KIND OF BEHAVIOR.  TO THE EXTENT THAT THERE WEREN'T HIGH



        22  BARRIERS TO ENTRY, I WOULD NOT EXPECT TO SEE THIS BEHAVIOR



        23  IN TERMS OF THIS CONCLUSION.



        24           THE COURT:  I THINK WE WILL TAKE A 10-MINUTE



        25  RECESS.�
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         1           (BRIEF RECESS.)



         2  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         3  Q.   DR. WARREN-BOULTON, BEFORE WE MOVE TO A NEW TOPIC,



         4  ONE, INDEED, IMPLIED BY YOUR LAST ANSWER BEFORE WE BROKE,



         5  I JUST WANT TO CLOSE THE LOOP ON SOMETHING WE WERE TALKING



         6  ABOUT BEFORE.



         7           YOU TESTIFIED ABOUT THIS APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO



         8  ENTRY AT SOME LENGTH; IS THAT CORRECT?  DO YOU RECALL THAT



         9  GENERALLY?



        10  A.   YES.



        11  Q.   AND THE GENERAL PROPOSITION IS, I TAKE IT, IS THAT



        12  THE MORE POPULAR THE PLATFORM, THE MORE LIKELY IT IS THAT



        13  AN APPLICATIONS WRITER WILL WRITE TO THAT PLATFORM;



        14  CORRECT?



        15  A.   I'M NOT SAYING THAT THE CENTRAL CHARACTERISTIC OF



        16  APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY, BUT THE LARGER THE SHARE OF



        17  AN INCOMPATIBLE OPERATING SYSTEM, THE GREATER THE



        18  INCENTIVE OF APPLICATIONS WRITERS TO WRITE FIRST TO THAT



        19  OPERATING SYSTEM.



        20           THE CRUCIAL POINT, OF COURSE, IS INCOMPATIBILITY.



        21  THAT'S WHAT CREATES THE EFFECT.



        22  Q.   DOES THE SIZE OF THE OVERALL MARKET MATTER IN TERMS



        23  OF THE STRENGTH OF THIS APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   SO THAT YOU WOULD--�
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         1           THE COURT:  ASK THAT AGAIN.



         2  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         3  Q.   DOES THE SIZE OF THE OVERALL MARKET MATTER TO THE



         4  STRENGTH OF THIS APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY.  THE



         5  ANSWER WAS YES.



         6  A.   YES.  CERTAINLY IN PRINCIPLE.



         7  Q.   SO, YOU WOULD AGREE THAT AT LEAST IN PRINCIPLE, IT IS



         8  HARDER TO CONVINCE AN APPLICATIONS WRITER TO WRITE TO A



         9  PLATFORM THAT HAS 10 PERCENT OF A $20 MILLION MARKET THAN



        10  10 PERCENT OF A THREE OR $400 MILLION MARKET?



        11  A.   IF THAT'S THE ONLY COMPARISON THAT YOU'RE MAKING, THE



        12  ANSWER--AND ALL ELSE IS BEING HELD CONSTANT, WHICH IS--



        13  Q.   PLEASE ASSUME THAT FOR PURPOSES OF THE HYPOTHETICAL.



        14  A.   FOR PURPOSES OF THE HYPOTHETICAL, YES.



        15  Q.   NOW, RIGHT BEFORE THE BREAK, YOU TESTIFIED IN



        16  COMMENTING ON DR. MYHRVOLD'S STATEMENTS ABOUT BARRIERS TO



        17  ENTRY; IS THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO FOCUS SOME ATTENTION ON THAT.



        20           AND IF YOU NEED A REFERENCE IN YOUR REPORT, I



        21  THINK PARAGRAPHS 46 AND 47 DEAL WITH IT, BUT MY QUESTIONS



        22  ARE NOT REALLY KEY TO THOSE PARAGRAPHS.  SO, YOU CAN



        23  REFRESH YOURSELF IF YOU WANT.  TAKE A MOMENT.  OTHERWISE,



        24  I WILL JUST BEGIN.  IT'S YOUR PLEASURE.



        25  A.   ALWAYS A GOOD IDEA TO STAY.  OF COURSE, I NOW MIXED�
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         1  IT UP.  46 AND--



         2  Q.   AND 47 IS WHAT MY NOTES TELL ME.  AND JUST TELL ME



         3  WHEN YOU'RE READY, SIR.



         4           THE COURT:  PARAGRAPH 46 AND 47 OF HIS TESTIMONY?



         5           MR. LACOVARA:  THAT IS CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.  I'M



         6  SORRY.



         7           STARTING AT PAGE 21, YOUR HONOR.



         8           THE WITNESS:  OKAY, PAGE 21.



         9  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        10  Q.   NOW, AS WE START TO TALK ABOUT BARRIERS TO ENTRY, I



        11  WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU FIRST WHETHER YOU AGREE WITH THE



        12  NUMBER OF GENERAL STATEMENTS ABOUT THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY.



        13           AND THE FIRST IS:  DO YOU AGREE WITH THE



        14  PROPOSITION THAT THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS ONE OF THE



        15  FASTEST-GROWING INDUSTRIES IN THE UNITED STATES?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   YES?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   AND I TAKE IT THAT IN COMING TO YOUR OPINIONS ABOUT



        20  COMPETITION IN THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY, AND IN PARTICULAR



        21  WHAT YOU CALLED THE PC OPERATING SYSTEMS MARKET, YOU TRIED



        22  TO EXAMINE DATA ON THE GROWTH OF THE MARKETPLACE; IS THAT



        23  CORRECT?



        24  A.   NO.



        25  Q.   OKAY, YOU DID NOT.�
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         1           DID THE DOJ OR STATE ATTORNEYS GENERAL TELL YOU



         2  THAT THEY HAD COMPILED DATA ON THE SIZE OR THE MAGNITUDE



         3  OF THE GROWTH OF THIS INDUSTRY?



         4  A.   YOU'RE ASKING IF I HAVE SEEN DATA--LET ME REPHRASE.



         5           HAVE I SEEN DATA ON THE GROWTH OF THE SOFTWARE



         6  INDUSTRY OVER TIME?  I'M SURE I HAVE.



         7  Q.   LET ME SHOW YOU A DOCUMENT PRODUCED TO MICROSOFT BY



         8  THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.



         9           MR. LACOVARA:  IT'S A ONE-PAGE DOCUMENT, YOUR



        10  HONOR, ENTITLED "ESTIMATED NORTH AMERICAN PC SOFTWARE



        11  RETAIL SALES IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS."  IT'S MARKED FOR



        12  IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1848, AND I OFFER IT



        13  AT THIS TIME.



        14           AND JUST FOR THE SAKE OF CLARITY, IT WAS PRODUCED



        15  TO MICROSOFT FROM THE FILES OF THE ANTITRUST DIVISION.



        16           THE COURT:  OKAY.



        17           MR. SCHWARTZ:  YOUR HONOR, WE WOULD LIKE TO HAVE



        18  AN OPPORTUNITY TO TAKE A LOOK AT THIS BEFORE WE AGREE TO



        19  ITS ADMISSION INTO EVIDENCE.  WE DON'T HAVE ANY OBJECTION



        20  IF THE WITNESS IS QUESTIONED ABOUT IT AT THIS TIME.



        21           THE COURT:  WELL, I'M HESITANT TO TAKE HIS



        22  TESTIMONY ON IT UNTIL WE HAVE GONE YEA OR NAY ON ITS



        23  ADMISSION.



        24           WOULD YOU LIKE SOME TIME TO CONFER ABOUT IT?



        25           MR. SCHWARTZ:  YES, I WOULD, YOUR HONOR.�
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         1           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME KNOW WHEN YOU'RE



         2  READY TO GO.



         3           (BRIEF RECESS.)



         4           MR. SCHWARTZ:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME WE DO



         5  STRONGLY OBJECT TO THE ADMISSION OF THIS DOCUMENT.  THERE



         6  DOESN'T APPEAR TO BE ANY FOUNDATION FOR IT.  WE DON'T KNOW



         7  WHAT IT'S BASED ON.  IT APPEARS TO BE DRAWN FROM AN SPA



         8  SOFTWARE SALES REPORT, PART OF A LARGER WHOLE, WHICH, AT



         9  THIS POINT, WE HAVE NO WAY OF ASSESSING.  WE DON'T KNOW



        10  WHAT THE BASIS FOR THESE FIGURES ARE.  WE DON'T KNOW FOR



        11  WHAT PURPOSE THEY WERE PREPARED.  WE ARE WILLING TO LOOK



        12  INTO ALL THESE THINGS, BUT AT THIS POINT WE SEE NO BASIS



        13  FOR ITS ADMISSIBILITY.



        14           MR. LACOVARA:  IF I MAY, YOUR HONOR, THE DOCUMENT



        15  WAS PRODUCED FROM THE FILES OF ANTITRUST DIVISION.  MY



        16  UNDERSTANDING--



        17           THE COURT:  THERE ARE A LOT OF THINGS IN MY FILES



        18  ON IT.



        19           MR. LACOVARA:  I UNDERSTAND.



        20           MY UNDERSTANDING, YOUR HONOR, IT'S A TABLE



        21  COMPILED BY THE GOVERNMENT'S EXPERT, DR. SIBLEY, WHO WAS



        22  INITIALLY ON THEIR WITNESS LIST AND WAS WITHDRAWN, A



        23  PUBLICLY AVAILABLE DATA COMPILED BY THE SOFTWARE



        24  PUBLISHERS ASSOCIATION.  I WILL NOT ASK THE WITNESS TO



        25  VOUCH FOR THE TRUTH OF THE SALES FIGURES INCLUDED IN THE�

                                                           50



         1  DOCUMENT, BUT WE WOULD ASK THAT IT BE ADMITTED SUBJECT TO



         2  A MOTION TO STRIKE IF THE GOVERNMENT CAN ESTABLISH SOME



         3  BASIS FOR BELIEVING THAT THE DOCUMENT IS NOT WHAT IT



         4  PURPORTS TO BE.



         5           THE COURT:  WELL, MR. SCHWARTZ, YOU GOT A



         6  REPRESENTATION, AND I'M PREPARED TO ACCEPT THE



         7  REPRESENTATION IN THE ABSENCE OF A REPRESENTATION TO THE



         8  CONTRARY, THAT IT WAS PREPARED BY AN ECONOMIST RETAINED BY



         9  THE GOVERNMENT.



        10           MR. SCHWARTZ:  YOUR HONOR, I'M NOT SURE.  I



        11  DIDN'T UNDERSTAND MR. LACOVARA TO BE SAYING THAT PROFESSOR



        12  SIBLEY HAD PREPARED THIS DOCUMENT.



        13           THE COURT:  THAT'S WHAT I UNDERSTOOD.



        14           MR. LACOVARA:  THAT IS MY RECOLLECTION, YOUR



        15  HONOR, THAT IT WAS EITHER PREPARED BY PROFESSOR SIBLEY OR



        16  THE ECONOMIC CONSULTING FIRM WITH WHICH HE WORKS.  I COULD



        17  BE INCORRECT ON THAT, BUT THAT IS MY STRONG RECOLLECTION.



        18           THE COURT:  WELL, LET'S DEFER ITS ADMISSION AND



        19  ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT IT UNTIL ITS PEDIGREE HAS BEEN



        20  ESTABLISHED.



        21           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        22           THE COURT:  AND WE WILL RETURN TO THIS MATTER



        23  BEFORE THIS WITNESS IS OFF THE STAND.



        24           MR. SCHWARTZ:  VERY GOOD, YOUR HONOR.



        25  BY MR. LACOVARA:�
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         1  Q.   NOW, DR. WARREN-BOULTON, TURN THAT DOCUMENT OVER, AND



         2  WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ANY DOCUMENT YOU MAY HAVE SEEN IN THE



         3  LAST FEW MINUTES, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING--IS IT YOUR



         4  UNDERSTANDING THAT THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IN THE UNITED



         5  STATES HAS MORE THAN DOUBLED IN SIZE IN THE LAST SEVEN



         6  YEARS?



         7  A.   I CERTAINLY THINK THAT'S TRUE IN TERMS OF REVENUE,



         8  POTENTIALLY EVEN MORE IN TERMS OF SORT OF UNIT SALES.



         9  Q.   TELL ME WHAT YOU KNOW ABOUT THE NUMBER OF PEOPLE



        10  EMPLOYED IN THE SOFTWARE BUSINESS TODAY VERSUS, SAY, IN



        11  1990 IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, SIR.



        12  A.   IT'S MUCH LARGER.



        13  Q.   DO YOU HAVE A NOTION OF THE ORDER OF MAGNITUDE OF THE



        14  GROWTH?



        15  A.   THIS IS THE MOST DYNAMIC, PROBABLY, AND FASTER



        16  GROWING SECTION OF THE U.S. ECONOMY THAT I CAN THINK OF,



        17  IS COMPUTERS.



        18  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE DYNAMISM AND RATE OF GROWTH



        19  OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS RELEVANT TO THE ECONOMIC



        20  ANALYSIS THAT YOU HAVE PERFORMED OR THE OPINIONS THAT YOU



        21  HAVE EXPRESSED TO THE COURT IN YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT



        22  TESTIMONY?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   CAN YOU EXPLAIN HOW YOU BELIEVE IT IS RELEVANT.



        25  A.   WELL, WITH SOME EXCEPTIONS, THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS�
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         1  HIGHLY COMPETITIVE.  THIS IS A MARKET IN WHICH FOR ALMOST



         2  ALL PRODUCTS, THERE ARE FEW, IF ANY, SIGNIFICANT BARRIERS



         3  TO ENTRY.  COMPETITION HAS BEEN VIGOROUS IN MOST SECTORS.



         4  THE RATE OF TECHNICAL CHANGE HAS BEEN VERY HIGH.  PRICES



         5  HAVE COME DOWN.  CONSUMERS HAVE BEEN WELL SERVED BY



         6  COMPETITION THROUGHOUT THIS INDUSTRY.



         7           IT'S CLEARLY AN INDUSTRY IN WHICH THERE ARE--THE



         8  OPPORTUNITIES FOR TECHNICAL CHANGE ARE PHENOMENAL, AND THE



         9  COMPETITIVE INDUSTRY, IN MOST MARKETS, HAVE RESPONDED



        10  APPROPRIATELY.



        11  Q.   WOULD YOU AGREE WITH THE PROPOSITION THAT THE GROWTH



        12  OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY HAS BEEN FUELED, IN PART, BY THE



        13  SCALE OF PROFITS THAT CAN BE EARNED BY SUCCESSFUL ENTRANCE



        14  INTO THAT INDUSTRY?



        15  A.   IN PROFITS--I'M ONLY HESITATING BECAUSE ECONOMISTS



        16  HAVE A SPECIAL DEFINITION OF THE TERM "PROFITS," WHICH YOU



        17  ARE PRESUMABLY AWARE OF.  THERE ARE ECONOMIC PROFITS AND



        18  ACCOUNTING PROFITS.  IN THE WAY THAT YOU ARE PHRASING THE



        19  QUESTION, WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY PROFITS?



        20  Q.   COULD WE USE THE LAYPERSON'S DEFINITION, THAT THEY



        21  MAKE A LOT OF MONEY.



        22  A.   MAKE A LOT OF MONEY.  THE SHORT ANSWER IS THAT WHAT



        23  ECONOMISTS WOULD SAY IS THAT THE AMOUNT OF INNOVATION



        24  OUTPUT AND INVESTMENT IN AN INDUSTRY WILL INCREASE WITH



        25  THE EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN, BUT THAT IF THE END RESULT IS�
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         1  ALSO A MONOPOLY, WHAT WILL HAPPEN IS THAT AT THAT POINT



         2  THE RATE OF RETURN MAY BE HIGHER IN THE SENSE OF PROFITS



         3  MAY BE HIGHER, BUT OUTPUT AND INNOVATION WILL BE LESS.



         4           SO, YOU CAN'T ANSWER THE QUESTION, IS THERE



         5  ALWAYS MORE INCENTIVE TO ENTER OR THAT IT'S DIRECTLY



         6  PROPORTIONAL TO THE RATE OF RETURN.  I DON'T KNOW IF



         7  THAT'S QUITE THE ANSWER TO THE QUESTION YOU'RE ASKING.



         8  Q.   I THINK MY QUESTION WAS MUCH MORE SIMPLER.



         9  A.   I WILL MAKE IT SHORTER.



        10  Q.   DO YOU REGARD IT TO BE ONE OF THE REASONS WHY PEOPLE



        11  ARE ATTRACTED TO THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY AND WHY THE



        12  INDUSTRY HAS GROWN, DO YOU REGARD ONE OF THE REASONS FOR



        13  THOSE TWO PHENOMENA TO BE THAT PEOPLE WHO ENTER AND ARE



        14  SUCCESSFUL MAKE A LOT OF MONEY IN THE SOFTWARE BUSINESS?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   AND WOULD YOU AGREE, AS I THINK WE DISCUSSED THIS AT



        17  SOME LENGTH TODAY, THAT THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS



        18  CHARACTERIZED BY RAPID INNOVATION?



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   AND THAT APPLIES TO OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE AS



        21  WELL; CORRECT?



        22  A.   I CAN'T GIVE YOU A COMPARATIVE STATEMENT.  COMPARED



        23  TO OTHER INDUSTRIES, ALL ELEMENTS OF SOFTWARE ARE SUBJECT



        24  TO RAPID INNOVATION.



        25  Q.   AND YOU WOULD ALSO AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT, WOULD�
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         1  YOU NOT, THAT THOSE WHO INNOVATE ARE FREQUENTLY OR



         2  TYPICALLY REWARDED IN THE MARKETPLACE?  IS THAT CORRECT?



         3  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



         4  Q.   AND THAT THOSE WHO ARE LEFT BEHIND IN TERMS OF



         5  INNOVATION GET PUNISHED BY THE MARKETPLACE; IS THAT ALSO



         6  CORRECT?



         7  A.   WELL, LET ME REPHRASE THE FIRST QUESTION.  YOU SAID



         8  THOSE WHO INNOVATE.  I WOULD SAY, IF YOU INNOVATE IN THIS



         9  INDUSTRY IN A PRODUCT AND IT'S A COMPETITIVE MARKET AND



        10  PEOPLE CAN'T EXCLUDE YOU FROM IT, THEN YES, INDEED, YOU DO



        11  MAKE MONEY.  IF YOU INNOVATE IN THE MARKET AND TO THE



        12  EXTENT THAT INCUMBENTS ARE ALLOWED TO EXCLUDE OR,



        13  OTHERWISE, HARM YOU, YOU MAKE LESS MONEY.



        14  Q.   WOULD YOU ALSO AGREE THAT THERE ARE MANY CATEGORIES



        15  OF SOFTWARE IN WHICH THE MARKET TENDS TO COALESCE AROUND



        16  ONE OR TWO PRODUCTS THAT HAVE PREPONDERANT SHARES OF THE



        17  MARKET, AND THEN THE OTHER PARTICIPANTS IN THAT PARTICULAR



        18  SOFTWARE CATEGORY ARE RELEGATED TO NICHE POSITIONS?



        19  A.   YES, I THINK THAT'S THE PHENOMENON THAT WE JUST



        20  DESCRIBED AND, I THINK, IN THE CONTEXT OF DR. MYHRVOLD'S



        21  PAPER.



        22  Q.   SO YOU DON'T REGARD IT AS UNUSUAL IN THE SOFTWARE



        23  INDUSTRY, ALL OTHER THINGS BEING EQUAL, FOR THERE TO BE



        24  ONE OR TWO FIRMS THAT HAVE A LEADING POSITION IN A



        25  PARTICULAR SOFTWARE CATEGORY?�
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         1  A.   BY ITSELF, NO.



         2  Q.   AND YOU WOULD ALSO--



         3           THE COURT:  YOUR ANSWER IS NO?



         4           THE WITNESS:  NO.



         5  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         6  Q.   AND YOU WOULD ALSO AGREE, WOULD YOU NOT, THAT



         7  DEVELOPMENTS IN HARDWARE DRIVE INNOVATION IN SOFTWARE?



         8  A.   AND VICE VERSA.



         9  Q.   AND VICE VERSA.  SO, THERE IS ALMOST A SYMBIOTIC



        10  RELATIONSHIP HERE?



        11  A.   YES, RADIO STATIONS, RADIOS, TV'S, TV STATIONS,



        12  CHICKENS, EGGS.



        13  Q.   I WON'T ASK ABOUT INNOVATIONS IN CHICKEN AND EGGS.



        14  A.   IT'S THE POSITIVE FEEDBACK CYCLE WE WERE TALKING



        15  ABOUT EARLIER.



        16  Q.   I TAKE IT YOU WOULD ALSO AGREE THAT USERS DEMAND THAT



        17  THE SOFTWARE THEY LICENSE OR ACQUIRE KEEP UP WITH



        18  INNOVATIONS IN HARDWARE; CORRECT?



        19  A.   DEMAND IN THE ECONOMICS TERM AS OPPOSED TO LAY TERM,



        20  DEMAND IN THE SENSE OF BEAT DOWN YOUR DOOR, NO, DEMAND IN



        21  THE SENSE THAT THEY ARE WILLING TO PAY FOR IT, YES, AN



        22  ECONOMIST'S VERSION OF DEMAND, DEMAND OF SOMETHING I'M



        23  WILLING TO PAY FOR.



        24  Q.   THAT ONE I MEANT LIKE AN ECONOMIST.



        25  A.   CONGRATULATIONS.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOU WOULD AGREE THAT THINGS LIKE OR FACTORS LIKE



         2  THE SPEED OF THE MICROPROCESSOR, THE SPEED OF A MODEM, THE



         3  SIZE OF MEMORY AVAILABLE ON A TYPICAL COMPUTER CAN EFFECT



         4  THE DYNAMICS OF SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT.  WOULD YOU AGREE



         5  WITH THAT STATEMENT?



         6  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHAT YOU MEAN BY THE DYNAMICS OF



         7  SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT.  THE SPEED OF INNOVATION OF A



         8  COMPLEMENT WILL AFFECT THE DEMAND FOR A PRODUCT.



         9  Q.   I MEAN, NOT JUST THE SPEED OF INNOVATION, BUT WHAT



        10  INNOVATION OCCURS.  WHAT IMPROVEMENTS OCCUR MAY BE DRIVEN



        11  BY HOW THE HARDWARE IS DEVELOPING OR THINGS GOING OUTSIDE



        12  OF THE REDMOND CAMPUS, FOR EXAMPLE.



        13  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.  IT'S THE NATURE OF THE PC OPERATING



        14  SYSTEM AS OPPOSED TO THE CONTRAST WOULD BE, PERHAPS, THE



        15  MACINTOSH, INSTEAD OF HAVING A SINGLE INTEGRATED WHERE ONE



        16  FIRM DOES ALL THE COMPONENTS, THE PC INDUSTRY HAS BEEN



        17  MARKED BY VERTICAL SEPARATION.  SOMEBODY DOES THE CHIPS,



        18  SOMEBODY DOES THE OPERATING SYSTEM, YOU KNOW, SOMEBODY



        19  DOES THE "NICK" AND SO ON DOWN THE LINE.  THE MARKET



        20  COORDINATES THE COMPONENTS AS OPPOSED TO HAVING A SINGLE



        21  FIRM COORDINATING THE COMPONENTS.



        22  Q.   NOW, DO YOU STILL HAVE THE TESTIMONY OF STEVEN



        23  MCGEADY HANDY?  I ASKED YOU TO READ PART OF IT EARLIER



        24  TODAY.  IF YOU WOULD TURN TO PAGE 64 OF THAT TESTIMONY, I



        25  WOULD LIKE TO READ YOU SOMETHING THAT MR. MCGEADY�
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         1  DESCRIBED IN HIS TESTIMONY AS THE DYNAMIC OF THE



         2  MARKETPLACE.



         3           AND JUST TO SET THE CONTEXT, HE WAS ASKED, AND



         4  CAN YOU SEE THIS ON PAGE 64, WHETHER IMPROVEMENTS IN



         5  MICROPROCESSORS BY INTEL COULD REMOVE THE NEED FOR CERTAIN



         6  OTHER TYPES OF PROCESSORS THAT HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN SOLD



         7  SEPARATELY.



         8  A.   CAN YOU JUST SAY THAT AGAIN.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  THE CONTEXT HERE WAS A COLLOQUY BETWEEN MY



        10  COLLEAGUE, MR. HOLLEY, AND STEVEN MCGEADY IN WHICH



        11  MR. MCGEADY WAS ASKED WHETHER INNOVATIONS THAT INTEL HAD



        12  MADE IN ITS MICROPROCESSORS HAD, IN ESSENCE, REMOVED THE



        13  NEED FOR THERE TO BE SEPARATE PROCESSING CHIPS MADE BY



        14  OTHER FIRMS ON THE MOTHERBOARD, OKAY?



        15  A.   I THINK I UNDERSTAND.



        16           THE COURT:  DIRECT OUR ATTENTION TO THE LINE.



        17           MR. LACOVARA:  SURE.  I NEED A COPY OF IT.



        18           (PAUSE.)



        19           THE COURT:  LINE SEVEN?



        20           MR. LACOVARA:  PAGE 64, LINE SEVEN, "BY EXTENDING



        21  THE INSTRUCTION SET OF THE X86 MICROPROCESSOR, YOU CAN



        22  RENDER IRRELEVANT CERTAIN STAND-ALONE HARDWARE"; CORRECT?



        23           THE WITNESS:  YES.



        24  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        25  Q.   DOES THAT GIVE YOU SOME CONTEXT?�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   NOW, LET ME READ TO YOU THE FOLLOWING QUESTION AND



         3  ANSWER, STARTING AT LINE 17 AND CONTINUING ON TO THE NEXT



         4  PAGE, (READING):



         5                "QUESTION:  BUT IN ANY CASE, THE MARKET FOR



         6           THAT SEPARATE HARDWARE GOES AWAY BECAUSE THE HOST



         7           CPU IS NOW CAPABLE OF PERFORMING THE FUNCTION



         8           THAT THE SEPARATE HARDWARE USED TO PERFORM."



         9           AND MR. MCGEADY'S ANSWER WAS, QUOTE, THE DYNAMIC



        10  OF THE MARKETPLACE IS AT THAT POINT THE HARDWARE



        11  MANUFACTURER OF THE SEPARATE HARDWARE NEEDS TO GO UP TO



        12  THE NEXT LEVEL AND PROVIDE A YET MORE YET FASTER AND MORE



        13  SOPHISTICATED CAPABILITY THAT THE PROCESSOR CANNOT YET



        14  PERFORM.  IT'S A DYNAMIC BALANCE.  THE PROCESSOR GETS



        15  FASTER, THE HARDWARE GETS MORE SOPHISTICATED.  THAT'S THE



        16  RATCHET UPWARDS THAT PROVIDES END-USER VALUE IN ADDITIONAL



        17  CAPABILITIES IN THE COMPUTER."



        18           DO YOU SEE THAT TESTIMONY, SIR?



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   HAVE I READ IT CORRECTLY?



        21  A.   YES.



        22  Q.   DO YOU AGREE, OR DO YOU HAVE AN OPINION AS TO WHETHER



        23  MR. MCGEADY HAS ACCURATELY DESCRIBED THE DYNAMIC OF THE



        24  MARKETPLACE AT LEAST IN THE MICROPROCESSOR MARKET?  AND



        25  I'M USING "MARKET" IN THE LOWER CASE "M" SENSE HERE.�
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         1  A.   I WOULD LIKE TO GIVE A SHORT ANSWER.  THE CPU MARKET



         2  IS ALSO ANOTHER VERY COMPLICATED MARKET.  I DON'T KNOW HOW



         3  MUCH TIME YOU WANT ME TO TAKE TO RESPOND FULLY.



         4           LET ME TRY BRIEFLY AND SAY THE FOLLOWING, THAT IT



         5  IS CORRECT TO SAY, OBVIOUSLY, THAT--AND I ASSUME THE



         6  ANALOGY YOU'RE DRAWING IS WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM, IS



         7  THAT A CHIP, HARDWARE CHIP, JUST LIKE AN OPERATING SYSTEM,



         8  CAN TAKE IN CERTAIN FUNCTIONS, SO THAT YOU CAN--JUST LIKE



         9  YOU CAN TAKE CERTAIN UTILITIES OR--AND PUT IT INTO THE



        10  OPERATING SYSTEM OR PACKAGE IT WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM.



        11  SIMILARLY IN HARDWARE, YOU CAN TAKE A CHIP AND THE CPU,



        12  AND YOU CAN PACKAGE IT TOGETHER WITH OTHER HARDWARE



        13  COMPONENTS.  THE CLEAREST EXAMPLE THAT I KNOW OF IS



        14  PROBABLY THE "NICK."



        15           AND, INDEED, INTEL HAS, OVER THE YEARS, EXPANDED



        16  THE FUNCTIONS THAT ARE IN ITS CPU PACKAGE.  IT'S ACTUALLY



        17  NOT NECESSARILY THE CPU ITSELF, BUT IT'S THE BLOCK ITSELF.



        18           THE COURT:  IN ADDITION TO THE SPEED?



        19           THE WITNESS:  YES.



        20           AND THE CPU, MEANWHILE, IS BECOMING MORE AND MORE



        21  RAPID.  SO, THERE HAS BEEN AN INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN



        22  FUNCTIONS ON THE OUTSIDE.



        23           AND IT'S TRUE THAT GIVEN INTEL'S MARKET SHARE,



        24  ONCE THAT'S INCORPORATED INTO THE CHIP, THERE IS NO



        25  MARKET, OR NOT VERY MUCH OF A MARKET, FOR AN INDEPENDENT�
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         1  PRODUCT BECAUSE, UNLESS YOU HAVE--UNLESS YOU HAVE A



         2  PRODUCT THAT IS SO MUCH BETTER THAN WHAT INTEL HAS



         3  INCLUDED IN THE CHIP, WHO IS GOING TO BUY IT FROM YOU



         4  BECAUSE THEY ALREADY GOT THE INTEL PRODUCT.  SO, YOU WOULD



         5  HAVE TO HAVE A REALLY QUALITATIVELY DIFFERENT CHIP.



         6           SO, IN THAT SENSE, WHEN INTEL HAS MIGRATED



         7  CERTAIN FUNCTIONALITIES INTO ITS CHIP, THE PEOPLE WHO MADE



         8  THOSE FUNCTIONALITIES HAVE HAD TO GO ELSEWHERE.  OKAY?



         9  THAT'S CERTAINLY THE RESULT OF WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A FIRM



        10  WITH THE KIND OF MARKET SHARE THAT INTEL HAS IN CHIPS OR



        11  THE KIND OF MARKET SHARE THAT MICROSOFT HAS IN THE



        12  OPERATING SYSTEM, THAT'S WHAT HAPPENS WHEN THEY



        13  INCORPORATE THAT FUNCTION.



        14           SO, IN TERMS OF MCGEADY'S STATEMENT THAT SAYS



        15  THAT THE INDEPENDENT FIRMS HAVE TO GO AWAY IF MICROSOFT



        16  DOES IT OR IF INTEL DOES IT, THAT'S PERFECTLY TRUE.



        17           I DON'T KNOW WHETHER YOU WANT ME TO COMMENT ON



        18  WHETHER OR NOT THAT'S A GOOD THING OR A BAD THING.



        19  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        20  Q.   I DON'T.  HE DOESN'T SAY "GO AWAY," DOES HE?



        21  A.   HE SAYS MOVE ON TO A HIGHER FUNCTIONALITY.



        22  Q.   RATCHET UPWARDS; IS THAT CORRECT?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT TO MEAN THAT THEY HAVE TO



        25  MOVE, ESSENTIALLY, TO CONTINUE TO ADD VALUE THAT IS NOT�
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         1  INCORPORATED IN THE CPU AT THAT TIME?



         2  A.   WHAT--IT'S A LITTLE MORE COMPLICATED THAN THAT.  JUST



         3  HYPOTHETICALLY, IF I HAVE A LITTLE CHIP, AND IT HAD A NEAT



         4  LITTLE FUNCTION, AND PEOPLE WERE WILLING TO PAY $20 FOR



         5  THAT CHIP, AND THE INTEL CAME ALONG AND TOOK A CHIP WHICH



         6  GAVE $20 WORTH OF VALUE AND PUT IT INSIDE THEIR PACKAGE,



         7  THEN THE PRICE PEOPLE WILLING TO PAY FOR MY CHIP DROPS TO



         8  ZERO.



         9           NOW, I HAVE TO GO OUT, AND I HAVE TO MAKE A CHIP,



        10  IF IT'S THAT SAME FUNCTIONALITY, SUPPOSE I GO OUT AND MAKE



        11  A CHIP IF PEOPLE ARE WILLING TO PAY--IF INTEL HADN'T PUT



        12  IT IN THE CHIP, THEY WOULD BE WILLING TO PAY THIRTY



        13  DOLLARS FOR IT, OKAY?  BUT WHAT I GOT IS I GOT A CHIP



        14  WORTH $20 THAT'S IN THE INTEL CHIP.  SO, THE DIFFERENTIAL



        15  IS NOW $10.



        16           WHAT HAPPENS WHEN INTEL OR MICROSOFT MOVES THESE



        17  FUNCTIONS INSIDE, THAT THE PRICE YOU CAN GET FOR A SECOND



        18  CHIP IS THE QUALITY DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE TWO.



        19           SO YOU HAVE TO--IF YOU'RE GOING TO SELL AT A



        20  POSITIVE PRICE, YOU HAVE TO PROVIDE SOMETHING WHICH IS



        21  BETTER THAN WHAT'S BEEN PUT INSIDE THE PACKAGE.



        22           AND WHAT HAPPENS IS THE PRICE THAT YOU CAN GET



        23  FALLS FROM WHAT THEY USED TO BE WILLING TO PAY FOR IT FOR



        24  JUST THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE TWO.  THAT'S SORT OF THE



        25  ECONOMICS OF WHAT HAPPENS.�
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         1  Q.   AND FROM THE USER'S--WERE YOU FINISHED?



         2  A.   I'M FINISHED, YES.



         3  Q.   FROM THE COMPUTER USER'S PERSPECTIVE, WHAT'S



         4  HAPPENING IS THAT THE COMPUTER USER IS GOING TO GET WHAT



         5  MR. MCGEADY CALLS "VALUE IN ADDITIONAL CAPABILITIES";



         6  ISN'T THAT RIGHT?  BECAUSE THE ONLY ECONOMIC WAY THAT



         7  THESE OTHER MANUFACTURES CAN SURVIVE IS BY MOVING INTO



         8  VALUE THAT IS CURRENTLY NOT PROVIDED BY INTEL.



         9  A.   WELL, I DON'T THINK THAT DRIVING PEOPLE OUT OF A



        10  MARKET IS NECESSARILY A GREAT WAY TO ENCOURAGE INNOVATION.



        11  I THINK THE POINT YOU MADE EARLIER, WHICH IS THAT PEOPLE



        12  ARE MORE LIKELY TO ENTER--INNOVATE IN MARKETS IN WHICH



        13  THEY CAN SORT OF MAKE MONEY.  AND IF YOU SAY TO THEM THE



        14  DOMINANT SUPPLIER OF EITHER THE CHIP OR THE OPERATING



        15  SYSTEM IS BASICALLY GO TO INCORPORATE THE PRODUCT, YOU



        16  KNOW, INTO THEIR OPERATING SYSTEM OR CHIP, AND SUDDENLY



        17  NOBODY IS GOING TO BE ABLE TO PAY YOU ANYTHING FOR IT, I



        18  DON'T THINK THAT'S A WAY ONE WOULD NORMALLY ENCOURAGE



        19  INNOVATION.



        20           SO, IF YOU'RE SAYING, DO CONSUMERS BENEFIT



        21  BECAUSE IT ENCOURAGES PEOPLE TO INNOVATE, IT'S CERTAINLY



        22  NOT A CARROT.  I SUPPOSE YOU CAN CALL IT A STICK, BUT I



        23  DON'T THINK--



        24  Q.   AND WHAT IS INTEL SUPPOSED TO DO?  IS INTEL NOT



        25  SUPPOSED TO BUILD IN ADDITIONAL FUNCTIONALITY THAT'S NOW�
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         1  TECHNICALLY POSSIBLE TO BE PRODUCED AT AN ATTRACTIVE



         2  PRICE?



         3  A.   OH, NOW I THINK YOU ARE ASKING ME THE QUESTION THAT I



         4  ASKED IF YOU WANTED TO RE-ASK, AND I THINK THE SHORT



         5  ANSWER IS YOU CANNOT SIMPLY LOOK AT AN OPERATING SYSTEM OF



         6  THE CHIP AND SAY ANYTHING THAT IS PUT INTO THE CHIP OR



         7  ANYTHING THAT'S PUT IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM THAT THAT WAS



         8  A BAD IDEA FROM A SOCIAL POINT OF VIEW OR THAT IT'S A GOOD



         9  IDEA FOR CONSUMERS.  YOU HAVE TO LOOK AT THE PARTICULAR



        10  CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH THAT IS DONE.



        11           AND AS ECONOMISTS, WHAT WE WOULD DO IS WE WOULD



        12  LOOK AT THAT AND SAY, "FIRST OF ALL, THERE IS A BIG SAFE



        13  HARBOR," WHICH IS IF YOU DON'T HAVE A MONOPOLY POWER IN



        14  THE CHIP OR MONOPOLY POWER IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM, THEN



        15  AS FAR AS, I THINK, AS MOST ECONOMISTS ARE CONCERNED, YOU



        16  ARE FREE TO INCORPORATE ANYTHING YOU WANT TO BECAUSE WE



        17  DON'T SEE ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  I MEAN, MAYBE YOU



        18  MAKE A MISTAKE OR YOU DON'T, BUT FROM AN ANTITRUST POINT



        19  OF VIEW, FROM A CONSUMER'S POINT OF VIEW, THAT'S THE



        20  DECISION WHICH CAN BE LEFT UP TO THE PERSON.



        21           SO, THE FIRST SCREEN IS, YOU HAVE TO HAVE



        22  MONOPOLY POWER.



        23           SO, WE HAVE NOW REMOVED, AS FAR AS I CAN SEE



        24  NEARLY EVERYBODY OVER HERE, AND WE ARE DOWN TO, SHALL WE



        25  SAY, A SMALL SELECT GROUP, THEN THE SECOND QUESTION, I�
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         1  THINK, THAT AN ECONOMIST WOULD ALSO SAY IS YOU WOULD LOOK



         2  AT WHAT WAS BEING INCLUDED, AND YOU COULD SAY DOES IT HAVE



         3  ANY PARTICULAR ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS.



         4           TECHNICALLY, WE WOULD SAY IF IT'S A COMPLEMENT,



         5  IF IT'S SOMETHING THAT WORKS WITH, SAY, THE OPERATING



         6  SYSTEM OR SOMETHING THAT WORKS WITH THE CHIP, THEN THERE



         7  IS MUCH LESS CONCERN IF IT'S INCORPORATED IN THAN IF IT'S



         8  A POTENTIAL SUBSTITUTE OR, I THINK, WHAT PROFESSOR REED



         9  WOULD CALL A PARTIAL SUBSTITUTE.



        10           SO, THE CONCERN FROM THE POINT OF VIEW IN YOUR



        11  CHIP EXAMPLE, SPEAKING HYPOTHETICALLY ABOUT A HYPOTHETICAL



        12  CHIP MANUFACTURER, IS THAT IF THAT CHIP MANUFACTURER HAD



        13  MONOPOLY POWER AND, SAY, THE CPU, AND DID, IN FACT,



        14  INCORPORATE INTO THE CHIP SOMETHING WHICH WAS A POTENTIAL



        15  SUBSTITUTE FOR THE CHIP, OR SOMETHING WHERE THE



        16  INDEPENDENT EXISTENCE OF THAT CHIP WOULD FACILITATE THE



        17  ENTRY OF RIVAL CHIP PRODUCERS, CPU PRODUCERS, THEN I THINK



        18  IT WOULD BE QUITE REASONABLE FOR SOMEBODY TO BE CONCERNED.



        19           THAT'S A VERY, VERY NARROW SET OF CIRCUMSTANCES.



        20  Q.   LET ME JUST TEST PART OF THAT ANSWER WITH A QUICK



        21  HYPOTHETICAL.



        22           IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, THAT IF THE MARKET,



        23  SAY, THE CPU MARKET, HAD TWO 50 PERCENT SUPPLIERS, NEITHER



        24  OF WHOM HAD MONOPOLY POWER, THAT THE RULES WITH RESPECT TO



        25  PERMISSIBLE INNOVATION WOULD BE DIFFERENT FROM THE RULES�
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         1  WITH RESPECT TO PERMISSIBLE INNOVATION IF THERE WERE ONE



         2  SUPPLIER WHOM YOU SAID HAD MONOPOLY POWER?



         3  A.   I DON'T THINK WE ARE TALKING ABOUT INNOVATION.  WE



         4  ARE TALKING ABOUT SIMPLY TAKING A PRODUCT WHICH IS SOLD



         5  SEPARATELY AND BUNDLING IT.  IF YOU TAKE A PRODUCT THAT'S



         6  SOLD SEPARATELY AND YOU JUST BUNDLE IT WITH SOMETHING



         7  ELSE, IT'S NOT NECESSARILY INNOVATION.  YOU ARE JUST



         8  BUNDLING.



         9  Q.   YOU DO NOT REGARD THE INTEGRATION, THE INCLUSION OF



        10  ADDITIONAL FUNCTIONALITY IN THE WAY THAT MR. MCGEADY WAS



        11  TALKING ABOUT, AS A FORM OF INNOVATION?



        12  A.   I DON'T KNOW THE CONTEXT THAT MR. MCGEADY IS TALKING



        13  ABOUT.



        14  Q.   FAIR ENOUGH.



        15           COULD YOU TURN TO PARAGRAPH 48 OF YOUR TESTIMONY,



        16  PLEASE.



        17  A.   WHOSE?  HIS?



        18  Q.   NO.  PUT MR. MCGEADY'S TESTIMONY ASIDE AND RETURN TO



        19  YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.



        20  A.   OKAY.



        21  Q.   IN PARAGRAPH 48 YOU REFER TO THERE BEING IMMENSE



        22  DEVELOPMENT COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH DEVELOPING NEW OPERATING



        23  SYSTEMS.



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE THERE IS ANY SHORTAGE OF CAPITAL�
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         1  AVAILABLE IN THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY?



         2  A.   NO.



         3  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE THAT PROSPECTIVE OPERATING SYSTEM



         4  DEVELOPERS HAVE INSUFFICIENT ACCESS TO DEVELOPMENT FUNDS?



         5  A.   I THINK THAT IF YOU CAN'T FIND A PROFITABLE PROJECT,



         6  YOU WILL FIND THAT YOU WON'T GET FUNDS.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  HOW MUCH DOES IT COST TO WRITE A NEW ROBUST



         8  WHAT YOU WOULD CALL PC OPERATING SYSTEM THAT COULD COMPETE



         9  WITH WINDOWS IN THE SENSE OF HAVING COMPARABLE FEATURES



        10  AND PERFORMANCE?



        11  A.   I DON'T KNOW OF ANYBODY WHO IS WILLING TO VENTURE A



        12  NUMBER.  I READ DEPOSITIONS FROM PEOPLE WHO JUST SIMPLY



        13  SAY THE COSTS WOULD JUST BE HUGE.



        14           ONE COULD, PERHAPS, AS A PARALLEL, LOOK AT OS/2.



        15  I HAVE SEEN A LOT OF NUMBERS ON HOW MUCH OS/2 COSTS TO



        16  DEVELOP, HOW MUCH THEY SPENT TO DEVELOP THE FIRST COPY.  I



        17  HAVE SEEN NUMBERS LIKE 150 MILLION.  I HAVE SEEN NUMBERS



        18  THAT I CAN'T ATTEST TO THE VERACITY AS TO HOW MUCH WAS



        19  SPENT ON OS/2 AND BY IBM BY THE END, AND I HAVE SEEN



        20  NUMBERS AS HIGH AS TWO BILLION.



        21           I HAVE SEEN--I MEAN, OS/2 BEING THE LAST EXAMPLE



        22  OF SOMEBODY WHO TRIED TO DO THIS.



        23           I THINK DR. MYHRVOLD, IN THE DOCUMENT THAT YOU



        24  JUST HANDED TO ME, CITES, ALTHOUGH THE ATTRIBUTION IS



        25  UNCLEAR, HIS BELIEF THAT IBM LOST $500 MILLION.  IF IT�
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         1  LOST $500 MILLION, I DON'T KNOW HOW MUCH IT SPENT, BUT



         2  PRESUMABLY SPENT A LOT MORE THAN $500 MILLION.



         3           AND FINALLY, OF COURSE, THERE IS THE FACT THAT



         4  WHATEVER IT WOULD HAVE COST FOR OS/2 TO DO IT, IT WOULD



         5  COST A LOT MORE TODAY.  AS YOU POINTED OUT, THE API SET



         6  FOR WINDOWS 98 IS MUCH LARGER FOR WINDOWS 95.  THE OS/2



         7  WAS UNWILLING TO DUPLICATE THE API SET FOR WINDOWS 95.



         8  THAT WAS SIMPLY TOO EXPENSIVE.  I PRESUME IT WOULD BE EVEN



         9  MORE EXPENSIVE TO TRY TO DUPLICATE THE WINDOWS 98.



        10           SO, I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE NUMBER IS, BUT IT'S A



        11  VERY, VERY LARGE NUMBER, AND IT'S ONE WHICH, AS I



        12  UNDERSTAND IT, IN THE OPINION OF PEOPLE IN THIS INDUSTRY,



        13  IT WOULD BE POINTLESS FOR SOMEBODY TO TRY TO INCUR IT.  IT



        14  CERTAINLY WOULDN'T BE PROFITABLE.  YOU COULDN'T MAKE MONEY



        15  TRYING TO DO IT.



        16  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  AND THAT IS YOUR TESTIMONY, AND THAT IS



        17  YOUR OPINION; CORRECT?



        18  A.   CERTAINLY MY OPINION, YES.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  YOU ALSO STATE IN YOUR TESTIMONY THAT THERE



        20  ARE LOW MARGINAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH PRODUCING A



        21  MARKETING SOFTWARE.  WE TALKED ABOUT THAT SOME ALREADY



        22  TODAY.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?



        23  A.   YES.  WE ARE TALKING ABOUT JUST THE PRODUCTION COSTS



        24  OF SOFTWARE.



        25  Q.   AND THAT MEANS ESSENTIALLY, IN LAYPERSON'S TERMS,�

                                                           68



         1  THAT IT DOESN'T COST THAT MUCH MORE TO LICENSE A MILLION



         2  COPIES OF A SOFTWARE PACKAGE THAN IT DOES TO LICENSE TEN;



         3  RIGHT?



         4  A.   I THINK THERE ARE PROBABLY SOME COSTS THAT ARE



         5  INVOLVED, BUT PARTICULARLY THE WAY MICROSOFT DOES IT,



         6  WHICH IS IT LEAVES THE COST OF DUPLICATION UP TO THE OEM



         7  OTHER THAN BILLING, MONITORING SUPPORT COSTS, WHICH, OF



         8  COURSE, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, THE OEM PAYS AS WELL.  SO VERY



         9  SMALL, NEGLIGIBLE.



        10  Q.   UNLIKE ANY OTHER INDUSTRIES, THERE ARE NO FACTORIES



        11  THAT MICROSOFT HAS TO BUILD; CORRECT?



        12  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, YES.



        13  Q.   AND THERE ARE NO ASSEMBLY LINES OF EMPLOYEES THAT PUT



        14  TOGETHER THE PRODUCT AND HAVE TO BE PAID?



        15  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        16  Q.   AND THERE ARE NO RAW MATERIALS TO BE PURCHASED OTHER



        17  THAN WHAT IT TAKES FOR THE LICENSE TO BE PRINTED, ET



        18  CETERA; RIGHT?



        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        20  Q.   THERE ARE, ESSENTIALLY, NO PHYSICAL CONSTRAINTS AT



        21  ALL ON OUTPUT; RIGHT?



        22  A.   OEM'S WHO GET A MASTER CAN DUPLICATE IT INDEFINITELY.



        23  Q.   SO, IF I WRITE THE WINNER, THE WINNER SOFTWARE



        24  PACKAGE, I CAN SATISFY A HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE MARKET



        25  DEMAND ALMOST INSTANTANEOUSLY; CORRECT?�
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         1  A.   ONLY IF USERS CAN SWITCH IMMEDIATELY TO YOU.



         2           I ONCE WROTE A BOOK.  THE MARGINAL COST TO ME OF



         3  LICENSING MY PUBLISHER TO PRINT MORE COPIES WAS ZERO.  IT



         4  WAS SHEER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, JUST LIKE A SOFTWARE.



         5  UNFORTUNATELY, I DIDN'T GET THAT LARGER SHARE OF THE BOOK



         6  MARKET.



         7           THE REASONS, OF COURSE--THE POINT, BASICALLY, I'M



         8  TRYING TO MAKE HERE IS THAT--WHAT LIMITS THE ABILITY OF



         9  ONE OPERATING SYSTEM TO SUBSTITUTE FOR ANOTHER OPERATING



        10  SYSTEM IN RESPONSE TO A PRICE INCREASE IS NOT JUST THE



        11  PRODUCTION COST.  THE PEOPLE HAVE TO BE WILLING TO BUY MY



        12  PRODUCT.



        13  Q.   THAT WAS NOT MY QUESTION.  MY QUESTION IS JUST WHAT



        14  YOU GOT TO.  IF THERE WAS A DEMAND THERE, A NEW ENTRANT



        15  INTO THE MARKET CAN SATISFY THAT DEMAND ESSENTIALLY



        16  WITHOUT PHYSICAL CONSTRAINT; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        17  A.   IF THERE IS A DEMAND FOR WHAT?  OPERATING SYSTEM?



        18  Q.   I WRITE THE WINNER PRODUCT, AND 10 MILLION PEOPLE



        19  WANT TO BUY IT IN TWO WEEKS, I CAN SATISFY THAT DEMAND IN



        20  SOFTWARE IN THE WAY I CANNOT IN OTHER INDUSTRIES; ISN'T



        21  THAT RIGHT?



        22  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, AND THAT'S THE MODEL THAT I THINK WE



        23  WERE TALKING ABOUT EARLIER IN THE DAY.



        24  Q.   AND YOU WOULD CHARACTERIZE THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY, AS



        25  A WHOLE, WOULD YOU NOT, AS BEING CHARACTERIZED BY HIGH�
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         1  OPERATING MARGINS?



         2  A.   OH, THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS ALMOST, BY DEFINITION,



         3  CHARACTERIZED AS HIGH GROSS MARGINS BY NECESSITY BECAUSE



         4  THEIR GROSS MARGIN IS--YOU TAKE THE REVENUE AND SUBTRACT



         5  THE COST OF GOODS SOLD, AND SINCE THE COST OF GOODS SOLD



         6  IS VIRTUALLY NIL, IT'S LIKE BOOK WRITING.  IT'S VERY HIGH



         7  GROSS MARGINS.



         8  Q.   AND THAT FACT MAKES THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY ATTRACTIVE



         9  TO VENTURE CAPITALISTS; ISN'T THAT TRUE?



        10  A.   NO.  THE ATTRACTIVENESS OF THE INDUSTRY IS NOT THE



        11  GROSS MARGIN.  IT'S THE PROFITS, AND THE PROFITS, IN TURN,



        12  ARE A FUNCTION OF THE NET MARGIN.



        13  Q.   AND WOULD YOU--



        14  A.   NOT THE GROSS MARGIN.



        15  Q.   AND WOULD YOU REGARD THE NET MARGINS OF THE SOFTWARE



        16  INDUSTRY AS THE REASON WHY THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS



        17  ATTRACTIVE TO VENTURE CAPITALISTS?



        18  A.   WELL, YOU'RE INTERESTED IN THE ABSOLUTE RATE OF



        19  RETURN ON THE AMOUNT OF PROFITS IN THE ACCOUNTING SENSE,



        20  ALL ELSE BEING EQUAL, THE HIGHER THE MARGIN THAT'S



        21  AVAILABLE, THE EASIER IT PROBABLY IS TO FIND VENTURE



        22  CAPITAL.



        23  Q.   WELL, IN PREPARING TO TESTIFY AND OPINE ON THE



        24  SUBJECT OF BARRIERS TO ENTRY, I ASSUME THAT YOU PERFORMED



        25  SOME ANALYSIS OF CAPITAL FLOWS IN THIS INDUSTRY IN THE�
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         1  AMOUNT OF VENTURE CAPITAL AVAILABLE FOR THOSE WHO WOULD



         2  DEVELOP NEW SOFTWARE PRODUCTS OR NEW OPERATING SYSTEMS



         3  PRODUCTS?



         4  A.   IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT VENTURE CAPITAL IS



         5  AVAILABLE, THAT IF THEY FIND A PROJECT WHICH APPEARS TO BE



         6  PROFITABLE IN AN ECONOMIST SENSE--THAT IS TO SAY, EARN



         7  WELL ABOVE OR SIGNIFICANTLY ABOVE THE COST OF



         8  CAPITAL--THEY'RE WILLING TO INVEST.



         9           THIS ISN'T AN INDUSTRY THAT IS MARKED BY A



        10  SHORTAGE OF CAPITAL.



        11           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



        12  DEFENDANT'S 1847, WHICH IS A COPY OF A STUDY PERFORMED BY



        13  PRICE WATERHOUSE COOPERS, THEIR MONEY TREE SERVICE,



        14  ENTITLED "1998 VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS BREAK RECORD



        15  AGAIN IN SECOND QUARTER 1998."



        16           AND I SHOULD BE CLEAR, THIS IS A SUMMARY OF THE



        17  REPORT.  IT'S NOT THE ENTIRE REPORT ITSELF.  I OFFER 1847



        18  NOW.



        19           MR. SCHWARTZ:  MAY I ASK, YOUR HONOR, FOR WHAT



        20  PURPOSE IS THIS BEING OFFERED?



        21           MR. LACOVARA:  IT IS OFFERED, YOUR HONOR, TO TEST



        22  THE WITNESS'S UNDERSTANDING OF THE LEVEL OF VENTURE



        23  CAPITAL AVAILABLE IN THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY AND TO SEE



        24  WHETHER THE FIGURES COMPILED BY PRICE WATERHOUSE COOPERS



        25  COMPORT WITH HIS UNDERSTANDING.�
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         1           THE COURT:  IS THIS LIMITED TO THE SOFTWARE



         2  INDUSTRY?



         3           MR. LACOVARA:  IT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE SOFTWARE



         4  INDUSTRY.  IT BREAKS OUT THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IN THE



         5  TEXT, YOUR HONOR.  AND I WILL MAKE CLEAR IN MY QUESTIONING



         6  THAT I'M NOT ASKING HIM ABOUT THE HEALTH-CARE INDUSTRY OR



         7  OTHER INDUSTRIES THAT ATTRACT VENTURE CAPITAL.



         8           THE COURT:  MR. SCHWARTZ?



         9           MR. SCHWARTZ:  AGAIN, YOUR HONOR, WE DON'T KNOW



        10  WHAT UNDERLIES THIS.  WE DON'T HAVE IT.  IT'S CERTAINLY



        11  HEARSAY.  WE OBJECT TO ITS ADMISSIBILITY.



        12           THE COURT:  WELL, I ADMITTED A FAIR AMOUNT OF



        13  HEARSAY ON YOUR SIDE OF THE CASE, TOO.



        14           1847 IS ADMITTED.



        15                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1847 WAS



        16                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        17           THE COURT:  SHALL I NOTE IT AS ADMITTED OVER YOUR



        18  OBJECTION?



        19           MR. SCHWARTZ:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



        21  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        22  Q.   WOULD YOU TAKE A MOMENT TO LOOK THAT THIS DOCUMENT,



        23  DR. WARREN-BOULTON.



        24           LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION, FIRST, TO THE



        25  FOURTH PARAGRAPH WHICH READS, "THE RAW DOLLARS ARE�
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         1  PARTICULARLY IMPRESSIVE CONSIDERING THE FOCUS OF OUR NEW



         2  MONEY TREE SURVEY IS ON STRAIGHT EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN



         3  ENTREPRENEURIAL COMPANIES WHICH EXCLUDES LEVERAGED AND



         4  SUBORDINATED DEBT."



         5           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         6  A.   YES.



         7  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND, AS AN ECONOMIST, THAT THERE ARE



         8  DIFFERENT REASONS COMPANIES WOULD TAKE EQUITY POSITIONS IN



         9  STARTUP VENTURES AS OPPOSED TO LEVERAGED OR SUBORDINATED



        10  DEBT POSITIONS?



        11  A.   I'M FAMILIAR WITH EQUITY AND DEBT, YES.



        12  Q.   WHAT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE REASON WHY--THE



        13  DIFFERENCES IN THE NATURE OF INVESTMENTS IN TERMS OF



        14  EQUITY AND DEBT?



        15  A.   DEBT, YOU LOAN THE FIRM MONEY.  THEY PAY YOU A FIXED



        16  PERCENT RATE OF RETURN.  YOU HAVE A FIRST CALL ON THE



        17  ACCOUNTING PROFITS OF THE FIRM.  WITH EQUITY, YOU GET THE



        18  REST OF IT.



        19  Q.   EQUITY YOU GET SOMETHING IF THE COMPANY TURNS A



        20  PROFIT AND HAS PAID ITS DEBTS; RIGHT?



        21  A.   YES.



        22  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, LOOKING AT THE SECOND PAGE OF THE



        23  DOCUMENT, UNDER "INDUSTRY SECTORS" WHERE IT SAYS,



        24  "NATIONALLY, TECHNOLOGY-BASED COMPANIES SET A RECORD AS



        25  WELL."�
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   AND THAT IS A GROSS FIGURE THAT INCLUDES A NUMBER OF



         4  BUSINESSES, NOT JUST COMPUTERS, AS YOU CAN SEE, AND



         5  SOFTWARE.



         6           BUT IS THIS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING



         7  THAT THE AMOUNT OF VENTURE CAPITAL AVAILABLE TO SOFTWARE



         8  COMPANIES IS INCREASING?



         9  A.   IT WOULD NOT SURPRISE ME THAT VENTURE CAPITAL, AS I



        10  SAID BEFORE, I DON'T SEE ANY MARKET IMPEDIMENTS IN THE



        11  VENTURE CAPITAL MARKETS.  IT'S A RISKY BUSINESS, BUT THERE



        12  DON'T SEEM TO BE ANY REASONS FOR PROBLEMS.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, LOOKING TOWARDS THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE,



        14  YOU SEE A PARAGRAPH, THE SECOND PARAGRAPH UNDER "STAGE OF



        15  COMPANY DEVELOPMENT."  IT SAYS, "FORMATIVE-STAGE



        16  COMPANIES, THOSE IN THE STARTUP AND EARLY STAGES OF



        17  DEVELOPMENT, WERE CLOSE BEHIND WITH 1.23 BILLION, OR 34



        18  PERCENT OF TOTAL DOLLARS."



        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        20  A.   YES.



        21  Q.   WHAT'S A FORMATIVE-STAGE COMPANY?



        22  A.   I ASSUME IT'S ONE THAT'S ONLY JUST GOTTEN PAST AN



        23  IPO.



        24  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT A GREAT DEAL OF THE



        25  CAPITAL IS ATTRACTED TO--THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IS�
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         1  ATTRACTED TO YOUNG, FORMATIVE-STAGE COMPANIES?



         2  A.   YEAH.  I THINK THAT'S TRUE.  I THINK THERE HAS BEEN A



         3  RECENT HICCUP HAVING TO DO WITH THE STOCK MARKET, BUT I



         4  DON'T SEE THAT AS A FUNDAMENTAL PROBLEM.



         5  Q.   INDEED, NETSCAPE WAS SUCH A COMPANY, WAS IT NOT?



         6  A.   YES.  AND GOING BACK IN TIME, SO PROBABLY WAS



         7  MICROSOFT.



         8  Q.   AND, INDEED, AT THE TIME THAT NETSCAPE--THAT



         9  MICROSOFT LEARNED, IN YOUR WORDS, THAT NETSCAPE'S BROWSER



        10  HAD BECOME A THREAT TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM, NETSCAPE HAD



        11  BEEN A--HAD BEEN IN BUSINESS FOR LESS THAN A YEAR; IS THAT



        12  RIGHT?



        13  A.   WHEN IT ISSUED ITS IPO?



        14  Q.   YOU SAID THAT YOU BELIEVED IT WAS THE FIRST HALF OF



        15  1995 THAT MICROSOFT BEGAN TO REALIZE THAT THE BROWSER



        16  DISTRIBUTED BY NETSCAPE WOULD BE A THREAT; IS THAT



        17  CORRECT?



        18  A.   YEAH, PROBABLY AROUND MAY.  I DON'T WANT TO SWEAR TO



        19  IT, BUT SOMEWHERE AROUND APRIL OR MAY.



        20  Q.   AND NETSCAPE WAS NOT EVEN A PUBLIC COMPANY AT THAT



        21  TIME, WAS IT?



        22  A.   THAT'S MY RECOLLECTION.  I DON'T REMEMBER WHEN THE



        23  IPO WAS, BUT IT WAS TOWARDS THE END.



        24  Q.   AND IT SHIPPED A COMMERCIAL PRODUCT ONLY A FEW MONTHS



        25  BEFORE; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?�
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         1  A.   I THINK ITS FIRST COMMERCIAL PRODUCT CAME IN--I DON'T



         2  KNOW WHAT RELEVANCE THIS HAS, BUT NOVEMBER, DECEMBER.



         3  Q.   OF 94?



         4  A.   I WILL JUST DEFER TO WHENEVER IT WAS, YES.



         5  Q.   OKAY.  AND DO YOU REGARD THAT AS SIGNIFICANT, FROM AN



         6  ECONOMIST'S PERSPECTIVE, THAT WHAT YOU SAY IS OR WAS



         7  PERCEIVED TO BE THE MOST SIGNIFICANT THREAT TO MICROSOFT'S



         8  MONOPOLY POWER WAS A COMPANY THAT HAD BEEN IN BUSINESS FOR



         9  LESS THAN A YEAR WAS NOT EVEN A PUBLIC COMPANY AND IT



        10  SHIPPED A COMMERCIAL PRODUCT ONLY A FEW MONTHS EARLIER?



        11  A.   OH, I THINK NETSCAPE WAS CERTAINLY, AND MAY STILL BE



        12  ONE OF THE GREAT SUCCESS STORIES OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY.



        13  AS REFLECTED IN THE VALUE OF THE IPO AND WHAT HAPPENED TO



        14  ITS STOCK PRICE.



        15  Q.   THAT WAS NOT MY QUESTION, SIR.  MY QUESTION TO YOU



        16  WAS, DO YOU REGARD IT AS SIGNIFICANT, FOR PURPOSES OF YOUR



        17  ECONOMIC ANALYSIS AND YOUR OPINIONS, THAT THE COMPANY THAT



        18  YOU BELIEVE REPRESENTED THE MOST SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM



        19  THREAT TO MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY, IN YOUR WORDS, WAS A



        20  COMPANY THAT WAS NOT YET PUBLIC, HAD SHIPPED THE



        21  COMMERCIAL PRODUCT ONLY A FEW MONTHS BEFORE, AND HAD BEEN



        22  IN EXISTENCE FOR LESS THAN A YEAR?



        23  A.   I DON'T UNDERSTAND IN WHAT SENSE YOU MEAN



        24  SIGNIFICANT.  COULD YOU GIVE ME A HINT HERE.



        25  Q.   DOES THAT TELL YOU ANYTHING ABOUT THE NATURE OF�
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         1  COMPETITION IN THE SOFTWARE BUSINESS, SIR?



         2  A.   I THINK--WHAT IT TELLS YOU, I THINK, IS WHAT, I



         3  THINK, MR. GATES REFERS TO, WHICH IS THAT THE THREAT TO



         4  THE OPERATING SYSTEM WAS, IN FACT, A PARADIGM CHANGE.  IT



         5  WAS SOMETHING REALLY DRAMATIC THAT SORT OF CAME OUT OF



         6  NOWHERE.  PARADIGM CHANGES DON'T HAPPEN VERY OFTEN.



         7  THEY'RE NOT SORT OF CONTINUOUSLY BANGING ON YOUR DOOR.



         8           THE FACT THAT PARADIGM CHANGES COME OUT OF--MAY



         9  NOT BE FORESEEN IS ALMOST A CHARACTERISTIC OF THAT.  THAT



        10  DOESN'T MAKE IT ANY LESS OF A THREAT, AND DOESN'T MEAN



        11  THAT YOU WOULDN'T EXPECT MICROSOFT TO RESPOND TO IT THE



        12  WAY THAT THEY DID.



        13           I'M TRYING TO DRAW SOMETHING OUT OF



        14  YOUR--WHATEVER I CAN.



        15  Q.   THAT'S ALL I CAN ASK.



        16  A.   THANK YOU.



        17  Q.   NOW, TURNING TO PARAGRAPH 48 OF YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR,



        18  WHERE YOU SAY THAT THE COST OF DEVELOPING AN OPERATING



        19  SYSTEM WOULD BE IMMENSE, YOU HAVE A FOOTNOTE THERE IN



        20  WHICH YOU REFER TO THE TESTIMONY OF SOMEONE NAMED BRIAN



        21  SPARKS; IS THAT CORRECT?



        22  A.   YES.



        23  Q.   AND WHO IS BRIAN SPARKS?



        24  A.   MY RECOLLECTION IS THE GENTLEMAN CURRENTLY AT, I



        25  THINK, CALDERA.�
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         1  Q.   AND WHAT IS CALDERA?



         2  A.   CALDERA IS A SOFTWARE COMPANY.



         3  Q.   AND AMONG OTHER THINGS, CALDERA PRODUCES OPERATING



         4  SYSTEMS SOFTWARE; CORRECT?



         5  A.   IN FACT, IT PRODUCES DR-DOS.



         6  Q.   AND, IN FACT, IT WAS ASSIGNED THE RIGHTS TO DR-DOS BY



         7  YOUR OLD CLIENT NOVELL; IS THAT RIGHT?



         8  A.   "OLD" IS THE OPERATIVE WORD, YES.



         9  Q.   THAT'S FINE, SIR.



        10           AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT CALDERA HAS RECENTLY



        11  BROUGHT TO THE MARKET AN OPERATING SYSTEM OFFERING THAT



        12  WAS DEVELOPED FOR SOMETHING LESS THAN AN IMMENSE AMOUNT OF



        13  MONEY.  IN FACT, IT WAS DEVELOPED FOR ZERO; ISN'T THAT



        14  RIGHT?



        15  A.   YOU MUST BE REFERRING TO LINUX.



        16  Q.   I AM, INDEED.



        17           CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT LINUX IS.



        18  A.   LINUX IS AN OPERATING SYSTEM.  1I DON'T KNOW HOW MUCH



        19  YOU WANT ME TO SAY ABOUT THIS--DEVELOPED BY A FINNISH



        20  PROGRAMMER, AND IT IS A--NOT IN THE FORM FROM CALDERA, BUT



        21  IT IS A NONPROPRIETARY, OPEN OPERATING SYSTEM WHICH THE



        22  SOURCE CODE IS AVAILABLE TO EVERYONE.  AND WHICH



        23  DEVELOPMENTS OCCUR, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, LARGELY



        24  IMPROVEMENTS OCCUR, LARGELY THROUGH VOLUNTARY



        25  CONTRIBUTIONS OF PROGRAMMERS WHO SIMPLY LIKE TO GET THE�

                                                           79



         1  CREDIT FOR IMPROVING THE SYSTEM.



         2           SO, IT'S KIND OF LIKE A SIXTIES, WHAT I THINK OF



         3  AS A CHILD OF THE SIXTIES, ANYWAY, FREEWARE.



         4  Q.   AND LINUX IS REFERRED TO AS FREEWARE, AND THE BASIC



         5  MODEL WAS LINUS TORVALDS.  HE'S THE FINN YOU MENTIONED;



         6  RIGHT?



         7  A.   YES.



         8  Q.   AND HE WROTE THIS WHEN HE WAS A STUDENT AT THE



         9  UNIVERSITY OF HELSINKI; CORRECT?



        10  A.   YES, IS MY RECOLLECTION.



        11  Q.   AND HE POSTED IT--"IT" BEING AN OPERATING SYSTEM--ON



        12  THE WEB, AND SAID, "EVERYBODY ELSE IN THE WORLD WHO'S GOT



        13  SOME SPARE TIME, IMPROVE IT"; ISN'T THAT BASICALLY RIGHT?



        14  A.   THAT'S MY RECOLLECTION, YES.



        15  Q.   AND THAT IS, IN FACT, WHAT'S HAPPENED?



        16  A.   AND IT HAS IMPROVED, YES.



        17  Q.   AND IT HAS IMPROVED.



        18           AND DO YOU KNOW HOW MANY USERS THIS FREE



        19  OPERATING SYSTEM HAS ATTRACTED IN ONLY A FEW YEARS?



        20  A.   PROBABLY SEVERAL MILLION.



        21  Q.   HAVE YOU HEARD THE NUMBER 7 MILLION?



        22  A.   I THINK THAT'S NOT UNLIKELY.



        23  Q.   IT'S, IN FACT, IMPOSSIBLE TO KNOW JUST HOW MANY



        24  PEOPLE CURRENTLY USE LINUX, ISN'T IT?



        25  A.   BECAUSE NO ONE BUYS IT.�
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         1  Q.   BECAUSE IT COULD BE DOWNLOADED FOR FREE OFF THE WEB;



         2  CORRECT?



         3  A.   YES, IF YOU WANTED TO DO THAT.



         4  Q.   AND NOW A NUMBER OF SIGNIFICANT SOFTWARE COMPANIES



         5  HAVE PLEDGED TO DEVELOPMENT AND PROMOTE LINUX AS AN



         6  OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT CORRECTION?



         7  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



         8           WELL, A NUMBER OF SIGNIFICANT OPERATING



         9  SYSTEM--WELL, I MEAN, COMPANIES HAVE PROMISED TO PORT



        10  THEIR APPLICATIONS, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, BUT I DON'T KNOW



        11  THE SUCCESS OR HOW WELL THAT'S DOING, BUT I HAVE HEARD



        12  STATEMENTS IN THE PROCESS THAT THEY INTEND TO PORT THEIR



        13  APPLICATIONS TO LINUX.



        14  Q.   IN FACT, INTEL IS SUPPORTING THE LINUX OPERATING



        15  SYSTEM, IS IT NOT?



        16  A.   I WOULDN'T BE SURPRISED.



        17  Q.   AND ORACLE IS SUPPORTING THE LINUX OPERATING SYSTEM,



        18  IS IT NOT?



        19  A.   YEAH.  YOU WOULD EXPECT PEOPLE TO SUPPORT OPERATING



        20  SYSTEMS IF THERE WAS A DEMAND.



        21  Q.   AND NETSCAPE SUPPORTS THE LINUX OPERATING SYSTEM;



        22  ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   AND, IN FACT, DEVELOPERS REGARD LINUX AS A DIRECT



        25  COMPETITOR TO WINDOWS 98; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?�
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         1  A.   IT'S A DIRECT COMPETITOR IN A NORMAL SENSE THAT THERE



         2  MAY BE SOME PEOPLE WHO WOULD DO LINUX INSTEAD OF WINDOWS



         3  SYSTEM AND VICE VERSA.



         4           BUT LINUX IS A--IT'S--IT IS, I CERTAINLY THINK AT



         5  THIS POINT, A NICHE OPERATING SYSTEM.  IT HAS SOME VERY



         6  INTERESTING AND UNIQUE CHARACTERISTICS, MOST NOTABLY, IF



         7  YOU LIKE THE BUSINESS MODEL OF LINUX, WHICH IS A VOLUNTARY



         8  BUSINESS MODEL.



         9           BUT ITS SUCCESS, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, IF YOU LOOK



        10  AT ACTUALLY WHO IS USING IT, HAS LARGELY BEEN IN THE



        11  SERVER AREA.  IT'S AN EXCELLENT OPERATING SYSTEM IF YOU'RE



        12  INTERESTED IN PUTTING AN OPERATING SYSTEM ON, SAY, FOR



        13  EXAMPLE, A FILE SERVER.  IT'S A PARTICULARLY GOOD



        14  OPERATING SYSTEM TO USE IF YOU HAVE SOME OLD 486'S LYING



        15  AROUND THE OFFICE BECAUSE IT'S VERY ROBUST.



        16           SO, THERE IS A NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS IN WHICH



        17  THE LINUX OPERATING SYSTEM, PARTICULARLY IN AN OFFICE SUCH



        18  AS MINE, THAT CAN BE QUITE USEFUL.  BUT I WOULDN'T REGARD



        19  IT, AT LEAST AT THIS POINT, AS, SHOULD WE SAY, CERTAINLY



        20  NOT A CONSTRAINT ON WINDOWS PRICING.



        21           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



        22  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1846, AN ARTICLE FROM THE C/NET NEWS



        23  SERVICE FROM NOVEMBER 10TH, 1998, ENTITLED "LINING UP FOR



        24  LINUX."



        25           MR. SCHWARTZ:  AGAIN, YOUR HONOR, IT'S A�
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         1  COLLECTION OF HEARSAY.



         2           THE COURT:  ARE YOU OBJECTING?



         3           MR. SCHWARTZ:  NO, WE DON'T OBJECT TO ITS



         4  ADMISSIBILITY.



         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I WILL ADMIT IT FOR WHAT



         6  IT'S WORTH.



         7                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1846 WAS



         8                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         9           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        10  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        11  Q.   IF YOU COULD TAKE A MOMENT TO REVIEW DEFENDANT'S



        12  EXHIBIT 1846, DR. WARREN-BOULTON.



        13           AND JUST TO MOVE THIS ALONG, MY FIRST QUESTION



        14  WILL BE WHETHER YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT THAT IS ABOUT



        15  TO BE HIGHLIGHTED ON THE SCREEN, NAMELY "NETSCAPE, ORACLE



        16  AND EVEN THE INTEL HALF OF THE WINTEL DUOPOLOY ARE



        17  EMBRACING THE OPEN-SOURCE OPERATING SYSTEM PLATFORM AS IT



        18  GAINS MOMENTUM AND ACCEPTABILITY IN THE MARKETPLACE."



        19  A.   SUBJECT TO THESE CAVEATS THAT I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE



        20  AUTHOR MEANS BY EMBRACING AS IT GAINS MOMENTUM.  I MEAN,



        21  IT IS WHAT--



        22  Q.   WELL, WHAT IS YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE EXTENT TO



        23  WHICH NETSCAPE, ORACLE, OR THE WAY IN WHICH NETSCAPE,



        24  ORACLE AND INTEL ARE EMBRACING THIS PLATFORM?



        25  A.   IT WAS MY UNDERSTANDING THAT ISV'S WERE MAKING AN�
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         1  ATTEMPT OR CERTAINLY CONSIDERING WRITING OR PORTING



         2  APPLICATIONS TO LINUX, AND I THINK THAT'S WHAT IT WOULD



         3  MEAN BY EMBRACING THE OPEN-SOURCE OPERATING SYSTEM.



         4  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT IT IS--LINUX IS



         5  PRINCIPALLY, AT THIS MOMENT, A SERVER-BASED OPERATING



         6  SYSTEM; IS THAT CORRECT?



         7  A.   AS OPPOSED TO A DESKTOP?



         8  Q.   YES.



         9  A.   MY IMPRESSION IS THAT ITS SUCCESSES, TO DATE, HAVE



        10  BEEN LARGELY IN THE SERVER AREA.



        11  Q.   COULD YOU TURN TO THE LAST PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT AND



        12  TO THE QUOTATION ATTRIBUTED TO LINUS TOLVALDS, THE



        13  INVENTOR OF THIS OPERATING SYSTEM, "`I'M NO LONGER LOOKING



        14  AT THE UNIX MARKET AS COMPETITION,' SAID TORVALDS.  `I



        15  HAVE BEEN MUCH MORE FOCUSED ON NT AND WINDOWS 98 AS



        16  TARGETS.'"



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY BASIS TO DISAGREE WITH THAT



        19  STATEMENT?



        20  A.   NO.  I WISH HIM WELL.



        21  Q.   OKAY.



        22  A.   I'M NOT SURE I WOULD BET ON HIM, BUT...



        23  Q.   WELL, INTEL IS BETTING ON HIM, ISN'T IT?



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW HOW MUCH INTEL--ALL I KNOW IS THAT--IS



        25  THAT SEVERAL ISV'S ARE AGREEING TO PORT SOME APPLICATIONS�
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         1  TO LINUX.



         2  Q.   AND THESE--ARE YOU FINISHED?



         3  A.   YES.



         4  Q.   AND THESE APPLICATIONS AREN'T SERVER APPLICATIONS



         5  EXCLUSIVELY, ARE THEY, SIR?



         6  A.   NO.



         7  Q.   IN FACT, COREL HAS WRITTEN A VERSION OF WORDPERFECT



         8  FOR LINUX, HAS IT NOT?



         9  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING.  I DON'T KNOW IF IT'S



        10  ACTUALLY DONE THAT, YET.



        11  Q.   OKAY.



        12           MR. LACOVARA:  WELL, LET ME INTRODUCE OR OFFER



        13  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1872, ANOTHER C/NET ARTICLE ENTITLED



        14  "COREL PORTS WORDPERFECT TO LINUX," MAY 11TH, 1998.



        15           MR. SCHWARTZ:  WITH THE SAME COMMENT, YOUR HONOR,



        16  NO OBJECTION.



        17           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 1872 IS



        18  ADMITTED.



        19                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1872 WAS



        20                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        21           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        22  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        23  Q.   DR. WARREN-BOULTON, THIS ARTICLE FROM MAY SAYS THAT



        24  COREL INTENDS TO PORT WORDPERFECT TO LINUX.



        25           DO YOU KNOW WHETHER, IN FACT, IT HAS DONE SO AT�
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         1  THIS MOMENT?



         2  A.   NO.  I THINK BEFORE YOU GAVE ME THE ARTICLE WHAT I



         3  SAID, IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THEY WERE PLANNING TO DO



         4  SO, BUT I DIDN'T KNOW IF THEY ACTUALLY HAD.  THAT SEEMS TO



         5  BE WHAT THIS ARTICLE SAYS, ALTHOUGH THE TITLE SAYS IT



         6  PORTS.  PERHAPS THE TITLE IS MISLEADING.



         7           YES, THE ARTICLE SAYS THAT IT'S PLANNING TO PORT.



         8  Q.   AND YOUR--



         9  A.   THE TITLE SAYS THAT IT PORTS.



        10  Q.   AND YOUR UNDERSTANDING IS THAT IF COREL DOES, IN



        11  FACT, OR HAS, IN FACT, PORTED THE WORDPERFECT 88 OFFICE



        12  PRODUCTIVITY SUITE TO LINUX, THAT USERS OF LINUX WOULD BE



        13  ABLE TO HAVE THE WORDPERFECT WORD PROCESSOR, QUATRO



        14  SPREADSHEET, PRESENTATIONS BRAND PRESENTATION SOFTWARE,



        15  THE COREL CENTRAL INFORMATION MANAGER AND CERTAIN OTHER



        16  APPLICATIONS.  IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING



        17  OF WHAT'S IN WORDPERFECT 8?



        18  A.   IT'S FINE, YES.



        19  Q.   AND THEREFORE, IT IS YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT ANYONE



        20  WHO WOULD DOWNLOAD OR OTHERWISE ACQUIRE THIS FREE



        21  OPERATING SYSTEM, ASSUMING THAT COREL HAS OR WILL PORT



        22  THIS APPLICATION SUITE, WOULD HAVE ONE OF THE WORLD'S MOST



        23  POPULAR SUITES OF DESKTOP APPLICATIONS TO RUN ON TOP OF



        24  THIS FREE OPERATING SYSTEM; IS THAT CORRECT?



        25  A.   WHEN YOU SAY ONE OF THE WORLD'S MOST POPULAR, ARE YOU�
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         1  SAYING COMPARED TO WORD?



         2  Q.   PARDON ME?



         3  A.   COMPARED TO WORD?  WORDPERFECT?  I MEAN, I USE



         4  WORDPERFECT, BUT WORD HAS A MUCH LARGER SHARE OF THE



         5  MARKET.



         6  Q.   WORDPERFECT IS PROBABLY THE SECOND MOST POPULAR IN



         7  THE WORLD; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?



         8  A.   IT'S THE MOST POPULAR WITH ME, YES.



         9  Q.   THEN YOU, YOURSELF, CAN DOWNLOAD LINUX FOR NOTHING



        10  AND HAVE THE SAME WORD PROCESSING AND OFFICE PRODUCTIVITY



        11  SOFTWARE YOU USE RIGHT NOW; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        12  A.   I MEAN, I JUST REALLY DON'T KNOW THE ANSWER TO THIS.



        13  I HAVEN'T TRIED TO DO THAT.  I COULD TELL YOU AS SOMEONE



        14  WHO HAS TRIED TO DOWNLOAD SOFTWARE OVER THE NET--I MEAN, I



        15  TRIED TO DOWNLOAD NETSCAPE 4.5 OVER THE NET AND, MANY



        16  HOURS LATER, WAS STILL THERE.  SO, I DON'T WANT TO GIVE



        17  THE IMPLICATION THAT SOMEHOW JUST BECAUSE IT'S POSSIBLE,



        18  IN THEORY, TO DOWNLOAD SOMETHING FROM THE NET, THAT IT'S A



        19  LIKELY THING THAT AN ORDINARY PERSON WOULD DO.



        20           I ALSO DON'T KNOW WHETHER YOU'RE REFERRING TO



        21  LINUX FOR FREE OR LINUX AS SUPPLIED BY CALDERA.



        22  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU THAT.  YOU UNDERSTAND THAT



        23  MR. SPARKS'S COMPANY SUPPLIES A VERSION OF LINUX; CORRECT?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   AND THEY ALSO OFFER A--THE VERSION OF LINUX THAT�
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         1  CALDERA PRODUCES NOW HAS A GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE THAT,



         2  IN FACT, IS ESSENTIALLY A CLONE OF WINDOWS; ISN'T THAT



         3  CORRECT?



         4  A.   IT HAS A GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE, YES.



         5  Q.   AND, IN FACT, CALDERA HAS PUBLICLY DESCRIBED THE



         6  INTERFACE AS SO RICH IN FUNCTIONALITY THAT IT'S VERY MUCH



         7  LIKE WINDOWS 95 OR 98.  ARE YOU AWARE OF THAT?



         8  A.   IT DOESN'T SURPRISE ME THAT THEY WOULD SAY THAT.



         9  Q.   INDEED, CALDERA HAS ADOPTED MANY OF THE FEATURES AND



        10  FUNCTIONS OF WINDOWS SPECIFICALLY SO THAT IT WOULD BE



        11  EASIER FOR USERS TO MOVE FROM WINDOWS TO THE LINUX-BASED



        12  CALDERA OPERATING SYSTEM; IS THAT CORRECT?



        13  A.   THEY WOULD HAVE EVERY INCENTIVE TO TRY TO DO THAT,



        14  YES.



        15  Q.   AND YOU WOULD AGREE THAT THE MORE SIMILAR--I'M SORRY.



        16  LET ME STEP BACK.



        17           HAVE YOU HEARD OF A PRODUCT CALLED KDE LINUX FROM



        18  CALDERA?



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   ASSUME THAT KDE LINUX IS CALDERA'S LINUX OPERATING



        21  ENVIRONMENT THAT INCLUDES THE OPERATING SYSTEM, THE



        22  GRAPHICAL INTERFACE AS WELL AS SOME OTHER SOFTWARE.



        23  A.   OKAY.



        24  Q.   I TAKE IT YOU WOULD AGREE WITH THE PROPOSITION THAT



        25  THE MORE SIMILAR KDE LINUX IS TO WINDOWS, THE MORE LIKELY�
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         1  IT IS THAT USERS WILL FEEL UNCONSTRAINED OR LESS



         2  CONSTRAINED TO SWITCH FROM WINDOWS TO KDE LINUX?



         3  A.   I THINK THAT AS A SIMPLE MATTER OF PRINCIPLE, THE



         4  CLOSER THE TWO THINGS ARE IN THEIR CHARACTERISTICS, THE



         5  EASIER IT IS TO SWITCH.



         6           HOW EASY TO SWITCH IS PROBABLY BEST INDICATED BY



         7  THE MARKET SHARE THAT THEY MANAGE TO ACHIEVE.  IF, INDEED,



         8  IT'S VERY EASY TO SWITCH, WE WOULD EXPECT TO SEE A RATHER



         9  LARGE MARKET SHARE FOR THIS PARTICULAR PRODUCT.  SINCE I



        10  DON'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT THE PRODUCT, I CAN'T SPECULATE



        11  AS TO WHAT ITS MARKET SHARE IS, BUT I WOULD GUESS THAT IT



        12  IS VERY SMALL.



        13  Q.   YOU DON'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT IT BECAUSE YOU HAVEN'T



        14  REALLY LOOKED INTO THE EVOLUTION OF LINUX DESKTOP



        15  PRODUCTS, HAVE YOU, SIR?



        16  A.   WELL, I READ SEVERAL ARTICLES ON LINUX AND ITS



        17  EVOLUTION.  I EVEN ACTUALLY ONCE WENT TO A SOFTWARE FIRM



        18  ABOUT LOOKED UP--I THOUGHT PERHAPS I COULD LEARN THIS.



        19           SO, I FOLLOWED LINUX WITH SOME INTEREST.



        20  Q.   DO YOU KNOW THAT YOU CAN ACTUALLY GET PC'S THAT HAVE



        21  LINUX SHIPPED AS THE DEFAULT OPERATING SYSTEM TODAY



        22  DIRECTLY FROM OEM'S?



        23  A.   IT IS MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT IS, IN FACT, NOW



        24  POSSIBLE.  I'M TRYING TO THINK OF WHICH OEM'S THAT TRUE



        25  FOR.  IT IS A SMALL NUMBER.�
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         1  Q.   BUT THE NUMBER WAS ZERO A YEAR AGO, WAS IT NOT?



         2  A.   OH, THAT'S RIGHT.  WHEN YOU GO FROM ZERO TO A SMALL



         3  NUMBER, THE GROWTH RATE IS HIGH.



         4  Q.   AND SO, AT LEAST SOME OEM'S HAVE CONCLUDED THAT IT IS



         5  PROFIT-MAXIMIZING, FROM THEIR PERSPECTIVE, TO BEGIN



         6  SHIPPING THIS COMPETITIVE DESKTOP OPERATING SYSTEM;



         7  CORRECT?



         8  A.   WELL, I ASSUME IF THEY HAVE DONE IT, THEY THOUGHT IT



         9  WAS PROFITABLE.



        10  Q.   OKAY.



        11  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF IT'S ACTUALLY TURNED OUT TO BE



        12  PROFITABLE OR NOT.



        13  Q.   HAVE YOU HEARD OF A COMPANY CALLED "RED HAT



        14  SOFTWARE"?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   OKAY.



        17           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



        18  INTO EVIDENCE NOW DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 1901-A AND 1901-B,



        19  WHICH ARE IMAGES THAT I MADE, OR THAT WERE MADE UNDER MY



        20  DIRECTION, FROM COPYING THE FRONT AND BACK OF A SOFTWARE



        21  PRODUCT CALLED "RED HAT LINUX 5.1."



        22           AND WHAT IS BECOMING OUR CUSTOM, YOUR HONOR, I



        23  WOULD LIKE TO SHOW THE WITNESS THE BOX ITSELF, IF I MAY.



        24           MR. SCHWARTZ:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        25           THE COURT:  THESE ARE SCREEN SHOTS, YOU SAY?�
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         1           MR. LACOVARA:  THEY'RE ACTUALLY HIGH-FALLUTIN



         2  XEROXES OF THE FRONT AND BACK, YOUR HONOR.



         3           THE COURT:  1901-A IS THE FRONT OF THE BOX, AND B



         4  IS THE BACK?



         5           MR. LACOVARA:  1901-B IS THE BACK, YES, YOUR



         6  HONOR.



         7  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         8  Q.   MY FIRST QUESTION, DR. WARREN-BOULTON, WILL BE



         9  WHETHER YOU KNEW THAT THIS PRODUCT EXISTED BEFORE IT WAS



        10  HANDED TO YOU.



        11  A.   I MIGHT HAVE, BUT NOTHING IN PARTICULAR.



        12  Q.   FROM LOOKING AT IT, CAN YOU TELL THAT IT'S



        13  A--SPECIFICALLY LOOKING AT 1901-B, OR THE BACK OF THE BOX,



        14  CAN YOU TELL THAT IT IS A DESKTOP OPERATING SYSTEM?



        15           THE COURT:  INCIDENTALLY, THESE EXHIBITS ARE



        16  ADMITTED.



        17           MR. LACOVARA:  I APOLOGIZE, YOUR HONOR.  THANK



        18  YOU.



        19                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 1901-A



        20                          AND 1901-B WERE ADMITTED INTO



        21                          EVIDENCE.)



        22           THE WITNESS:  THE ADVERTISEMENT ON THE BACK



        23  BEGINS BY SAYING THAT IT IS A POSIX-BASED SYSTEM THAT



        24  COULD BE USED AS A UNIX WORK STATION FOR APPLICATIONS



        25  RANGING FROM INTERNET SERVERS TO RELIABLE WORK GROUP�
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         1  COMPUTING.



         2           IT HAS BEEN MY UNDERSTANDING, AS I SAID BEFORE,



         3  THAT TO THE EXTENT THAT UNIX HAS GROWN, ITS SUCCESS HAS



         4  BEEN MAINLY IN THOSE AREAS.



         5           THE BOX ALSO SAYS THAT YOU CAN USE IT AS A



         6  DESKTOP SYSTEM.  THAT'S QUITE TRUE.  AND THAT'S TRUE FOR A



         7  NUMBER OF OTHER SYSTEMS, AS WELL.



         8  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         9  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT THE SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS ARE FOR



        10  THIS?



        11  A.   NO.



        12  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHETHER IT WILL RUN ON ANY INTEL 486



        13  MACHINE OR GREATER?



        14  A.   I WOULD THINK THAT IT PROBABLY WOULD, BUT I WOULD



        15  HAVE TO CHECK.



        16  Q.   IT COULD RUN ON ANY MACHINE--ON MACHINES THAT YOU



        17  HAVE CALLED PC'S IN DEFINING YOUR MARKET; IS THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   THAT'S QUITE POSSIBLE.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  AND DO YOU SEE IN THE UPPER LEFT-HAND CORNER



        20  WHERE THERE IS A SCREEN SHOT OF THE LINUX WINDOW, ACTUALLY



        21  A SERIES OF WINDOWS?  DO YOU SEE THOSE?



        22  A.   YES.



        23           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, THE RESOLUTION IS NOT



        24  TERRIFIC HERE, BUT IT MAY ACTUALLY BE BETTER ON THE LARGER



        25  SCREEN.�
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         1           THE WITNESS:  OKAY.



         2  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         3  Q.   DO YOU SEE THAT THE WINDOW LOOKS A LOT LIKE A WINDOWS



         4  WINDOW?



         5  A.   WELL, THEY'RE DEFINITELY WINDOWS WITH A SMALL "W."



         6  Q.   IN FACT, THERE IS A "START" BUTTON RIGHT HERE ON THE



         7  LOWER LEFT JUST LIKE IN WINDOWS; IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   WELL, I GOT TO PUT GLASSES ON, BUT YES, THAT IS, BUT



         9  I THINK THAT'S THE LIMIT OF WHAT I CAN DISCERN.



        10  Q.   CAN YOU SEE WHAT'S IN THE UPPER RIGHT-HAND CORNER OF



        11  THE WINDOWS?  CAN YOU SEE IF THERE IS A MINIMIZE AND A



        12  MAXIMIZE, JUST LIKE IN WINDOWS?



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   CAN YOU SEE THAT THERE IS A TASK BAR THAT RUNS ACROSS



        15  THE BOTTOM THAT SHOWS YOUR PROGRAMS YOU ARE RUNNING, JUST



        16  LIKE IN WINDOWS?



        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF IT'S JUST LIKE IN WINDOWS, BUT THERE



        18  IS A TASK BAR ACROSS THE BOTTOM, YES.



        19  Q.   AND DO YOU SEE WHAT SOFTWARE IS INCLUDED IN THIS BOX?



        20  A.   WHERE AM I GOING TO LOOK FOR THAT?



        21  Q.   LOOK AT VALUE-ADDED BONUS PRODUCTS.



        22           WOULD IT SURPRISE YOU IF IT INCLUDED



        23  WORDPERFECT 7?



        24  A.   WELL, IF THIS IS GOING TO BE DESKTOP APPLICATIONS,



        25  IT'S GOING TO HAVE TO INCLUDE WORD PROCESSING.�
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         1  Q.   AND WHAT ELSE WOULD YOU SAY WOULD BE INCLUDED IN



         2  DESKTOP APPLICATIONS?  PROBABLY PRESENTATION SOFTWARE;



         3  RIGHT?



         4  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK AT THIS TO SEE WHAT'S IN IT.



         5  Q.   IT SAYS ACROSS THE BOTTOM IT INCLUDES NETSCAPE



         6  NAVIGATOR.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         7  A.   THAT I CERTAINLY WOULD EXPECT.



         8  Q.   SO, IT WOULD HAVE WHAT YOU CALL A BROWSER; CORRECT?



         9  A.   YES.



        10  Q.   AND IT REPRESENTS, AGAIN, IN THE ADDED-VALUE BONUS



        11  PRODUCT AREA, THAT IT HAS A FULL SET OF INTERNET TOOLS?



        12  A.   I CERTAINLY WOULD EXPECT ANY OPERATING SYSTEM TO HAVE



        13  THAT.



        14  Q.   WHAT'S CAD?  DO YOU SEE THAT?  C-A-D.



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   COMPUTER-ASSISTED DESIGN?



        17  A.   RIGHT.



        18  Q.   SO, IT'S DESIGN SOFTWARE?



        19  A.   IT IS WHAT IT IS.



        20  Q.   AND IT SAYS IT HAS A DATABASE MANAGEMENT PACKAGE AS



        21  WELL?



        22  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.



        23  Q.   AND IT SAYS IT HAS A REAL AUDIO PLAYER.  DO YOU SEE



        24  THAT?



        25  A.   YES.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOU UNDERSTAND REAL AUDIO TO BE THE LEADING



         2  PLAYER OF LIVE AUDIO AND VIDEO--



         3  A.   IT'S ON MY MACHINE AS WELL.



         4  Q.   AND ALSO IF YOU LOOK UP IN THE BLUE BOX, IT LISTS A



         5  SERIES OF DEVELOPMENT TOOLS THAT IT HAS.



         6  A.   UMM-HMM.



         7  Q.   YOU CAN PROGRAM IN ALL THOSE LANGUAGES IN LINUX--IS



         8  THAT RIGHT?--FOR THE LINUX OPERATING SYSTEM.



         9  A.   I CAN'T.



        10  Q.   BUT SOMEONE WHO WANTED TO COULD; CORRECT, SIR?



        11  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  ALL I COULD TELL YOU IS I COULDN'T.



        12  Q.   COULD YOU TELL ME WHAT COMES IN THIS BOX IN TERMS OF



        13  ITS APPLICATIONS THAT IS NOT AMONG THE APPLICATIONS USED



        14  BY THE PREPONDERANT MAJORITY OF COMPUTER USERS IN THIS



        15  COUNTRY TODAY?



        16  A.   AS I SIT HERE RIGHT NOW, OF COURSE NOT.



        17  Q.   IT'S GOT EVERYTHING THAT MOST COMPUTER USERS USE; IS



        18  THAT RIGHT?



        19  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF THAT'S TRUE.  I GOT A BOX HERE, A



        20  LIST OF APPLICATIONS THAT ARE ON IT.  YOU ARE ASKING ME,



        21  CAN I COMPARE THESE APPLICATIONS WITH THE APPLICATIONS



        22  THAT ARE MOST WIDELY USED.  THERE IS NO WAY I CAN DO THAT.



        23  Q.   WHY ISN'T THERE ANY WAY?  YOU TESTIFIED AT LENGTH



        24  ABOUT THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY; CORRECT?



        25  A.   YES.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOUR OPINION IS THAT THE THING OR ONE OF THE



         2  THINGS THAT KEEPS COMPETITIVE OPERATING SYSTEMS FROM



         3  SUCCEEDING IS THEY DON'T HAVE THE APPLICATIONS THAT PEOPLE



         4  WANT; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



         5  A.   I'M SAYING THAT THE DEMAND FOR AN OPERATING SYSTEM



         6  DEPENDS, AND NOBODY WILL AGREE WITH ME MORE THAN MICROSOFT



         7  ITSELF, THAT DEMAND FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEM DEPENDS ON



         8  THE APPLICATIONS THAT YOU CAN USE ON THAT OPERATING



         9  SYSTEM.  IT'S NOT NECESSARILY A DEMAND FOR THE OPERATING



        10  SYSTEM, IN AND OF ITSELF.  IT'S SORT OF THE MANTRA OF THE



        11  INDUSTRY.



        12  Q.   AND WOULD YOU AGREE WITH ME THAT LINUX HAS MADE A



        13  MORE VIABLE COMPETITOR TO MICROSOFT BY THE FACT THAT IN



        14  THE BOX YOU GET ALL OF THE APPLICATIONS THAT WE HAVE JUST



        15  DISCUSSED?



        16  A.   I THINK AS I SAID BEFORE, THE BETTER THE PRODUCT THAT



        17  YOU MAKE, IN YOUR TERMS, THE MORE VIABLE COMPETITOR YOU



        18  ARE.  THE ISSUE IS, HAVE YOU BECOME A SUFFICIENTLY VIABLE



        19  COMPETITOR, HOWEVER YOU WANT TO DEFINE IT, SO THAT THE



        20  AVAILABILITY OF YOUR PRODUCT LIMITS THE PRICING BY THE



        21  FIRM WHICH WE ARE LOOKING AT TO SAY DO THEY HAVE MONOPOLY



        22  POWER, AND THAT'S THE CENTRAL QUESTION.



        23           AND THE EVIDENCE THAT I HAVE SEEN--I HAVE SEEN NO



        24  EVIDENCE AT ALL THAT THE AVAILABILITY OF LINUX, IN ITS



        25  PAST OR CURRENT FORM, IN ANY WAY, IS LIMITING THE PRICE�
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         1  CHARGED BY MICROSOFT.



         2  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOU DID NOT KNOW THAT THIS PRODUCT EXISTED



         3  TEN MINUTES AGO, DID YOU?



         4  A.   IN WHAT SENSE?  IT EXISTS AS A GENERAL PRODUCT?  DID



         5  I KNOW IT WAS A RED HAT LINUX, YES.



         6  Q.   THAT THERE WAS A DESKTOP PRODUCT CALLED RED HAT LINUX



         7  THAT INCLUDED ALL OF THIS APPLICATION SOFTWARE THAT YOU



         8  SAY IS THE PRINCIPAL BARRIER TO ENTRY, THE SUCCESSFUL



         9  ENTRY, INTO THE DESKTOP OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS.



        10  A.   NO.  I HAVE NEVER SEEN THIS BOX BEFORE.



        11  Q.   DID YOU KNOW THAT ALL OF THESE APPLICATIONS EXISTED



        12  TODAY FOR LINUX AND COULD RUN ON A REGULAR PC?



        13  A.   I KNEW THERE WAS A LINUX WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF



        14  APPLICATIONS.  I DIDN'T GO AND LOOK AND SEE EXACTLY HOW



        15  MANY APPLICATIONS WERE IN 5.1.



        16  Q.   AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND LINUX TO BE THE FASTEST GROWING



        17  OPERATING SYSTEM IN THE WORLD TODAY?



        18  A.   AS I SAID, GIVEN THE BASE IT STARTED FROM, I WOULDN'T



        19  BE SURPRISED.



        20           MY POINT HERE, BASICALLY, IS THAT THE RELEVANCE



        21  OF THAT ISSUE, FROM MY POINT OF VIEW, IS WHETHER OR NOT



        22  THE EXISTENCE OF LINUX CONSTRAINS THE PRICING OF



        23  MICROSOFT, AND I HAVE ABSOLUTELY NO EVIDENCE THAT



        24  MICROSOFT'S PRICING OF LINUX IS CONSTRAINED BY PERCEIVED



        25  OR ACTUAL COMPETITION--OF--ITS OPERATING SYSTEM IS�
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         1  CONSTRAINED BY THE AVAILABILITY OF LINUX.



         2  Q.   AND WHAT WOULD YOUR OPINION BE IF I ASKED YOU THAT



         3  QUESTION SIX MONTHS FROM NOW, TWELVE MONTHS FROM NOW, OR



         4  TWO YEARS FROM NOW?



         5           MR. SCHWARTZ:  OBJECTION.  IT'S PLAINLY



         6  IMPOSSIBLE TO ANSWER THAT.



         7           THE COURT:  IT MAY OR MAY NOT BE.  OBJECTION IS



         8  OVERRULED.



         9           GO AHEAD.



        10           THE WITNESS:  I'M SORRY, IF YOU ASKED ME THAT



        11  QUESTION TWO YEARS FROM NOW?



        12  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        13  Q.   IF I ASKED YOU TWO YEARS FROM NOW DOES LINUX



        14  CONSTRAIN THE ABILITY OF MICROSOFT TO RAISE ITS PRICES?



        15  DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA WHAT YOUR ANSWER WOULD BE?



        16  A.   TWO YEARS FROM NOW?



        17           YES, I DO, IN THE FOLLOWING SENSE, THAT I DO NOT



        18  BELIEVE THAT WHATEVER--THAT WHATEVER ROLE LINUX IS GOING



        19  TO HAVE IN THE FUTURE OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM WORLD, THAT



        20  THE AVAILABILITY OF LINUX IS EXPECTED TO SIGNIFICANTLY



        21  CONSTRAIN A MONOPOLY POWER AND MONOPOLY PROFITS OF



        22  MICROSOFT.  AND WHAT I WOULD TURN TO THERE.  AS AN



        23  ECONOMIST--AND I'M SPEAKING NOT JUST OF LINUX, BUT OF ANY



        24  OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM, IS SIMPLY THE FINANCIAL MARKETS.



        25           WHAT I BELIEVE OR WHAT YOU BELIEVE MAY BE ONE�
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         1  THING, BUT WHAT THE FINANCIAL MARKETS BELIEVE IS THAT NO



         2  SUCH SIGNIFICANT THREAT TO--UNIX POSES NO SUCH SIGNIFICANT



         3  THREAT TO THE FUTURE.  AS WE TALKED ABOUT BEFORE AND IN



         4  THE QUESTIONS THAT YOU ASKED ME, FINANCIAL MARKETS LOOK



         5  INDEFINITELY INTO THE FUTURE, NOT JUST ONE YEAR OR TWO



         6  YEARS, BUT SIX YEARS OR TEN YEARS.  THE FINANCIAL MARKETS



         7  ARE LOOKING AT MICROSOFT.  THEY ARE LOOKING AT THE CURRENT



         8  PROFITS OF MICROSOFT, AND THEY ARE ASKING THE QUESTION,



         9  "DO WE, AS PEOPLE WHO ARE BETTING OUR MONEY ON THIS, DO WE



        10  EXPECT THAT THOSE PROFITS WILL BE SUSTAINED OVER TIME, OR



        11  DO WE EXPECT THEY WILL INCREASE OVER TIME?"



        12           AND AS I SAID IN MY REPORT, IF YOU LOOK AT



        13  TECHNICALLY WHAT'S CALLED THE PRICE EARNINGS RATIO, YOU



        14  HAVE THE FINANCIAL MARKETS OPINION AS TO WHAT IS GOING TO



        15  HAPPEN TO THE GROWTH OF PROFITS.  THAT'S YOUR BEST



        16  INDICATION OF THE RATE OF GROWTH OF PROFITS.  FINANCIAL



        17  MARKETS HAVE GIVEN MICROSOFT A PE RATIO OF OVER 50, WHICH



        18  IS TWICE THE AVERAGE.  WHAT THE FINANCIAL MARKETS ARE



        19  SAYING IS, "WE EXPECT THAT MICROSOFT'S PROFITS WILL



        20  CONTINUE TO GROW, NOT ONLY GROW, BUT GROW FAR MORE RAPIDLY



        21  THAN OTHER COMPANIES."



        22           IF, INDEED, IT WERE THE CASE THAT PEOPLE REALLY



        23  BELIEVED THAT UNIX, IN ONE YEAR, TWO YEARS, SIX YEARS OR



        24  TEN YEARS, WAS GOING TO SEVERELY CONSTRAIN MICROSOFT'S



        25  MONOPOLY PROFITS, THEN WE WOULD NOT OBSERVE THE KIND OF�
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         1  BEHAVIOR THAT WE ACTUALLY DO IN THE FINANCIAL MARKETS.



         2           SO, WHILE IT'S NOT POSSIBLE FOR ME TO SAY TO YOU



         3  I CAN LOOK INTO A CRYSTAL BALL, EVEN AS AN ECONOMIST, AND



         4  SEE WHAT'S GOING TO HAPPEN IN SIX YEARS, I CAN GIVEN YOU



         5  THE OPINION OF THE PEOPLE WHO ARE BETTING A LOT OF MONEY



         6  ON IT, AND THEIR OPINION IS NO.



         7  Q.   AND AREN'T THERE A LOT OF PEOPLE MAKING EXACTLY THE



         8  CONTRARY BET--NAMELY COREL, INTEL, NETSCAPE, ORACLE AND



         9  EVERYBODY ELSE WHO IS INVESTING MILLIONS OF DOLLARS IN RED



        10  HAT AND IN CALDERA AND IN DEVELOPING THE KDE PRODUCT--IT



        11  MAY NOT BE REFLECTED IN A PRICE EARNINGS RATIO, BUT IT'S



        12  REFLECTING A DIFFERENT BET THAT THE MARKETS ARE MAKING;



        13  ISN'T THAT RIGHT, SIR?



        14  A.   NO, THAT'S A DIFFERENT BET.  THAT'S A BET THAT SAYS I



        15  THINK THAT THE RETURN TO THIS INVESTMENT WILL BE



        16  PROFITABLE.



        17           THE RELEVANT QUESTION IS:  IS THIS PRODUCT GOING



        18  TO AFFECT THE PROFITS OF MICROSOFT.



        19           NOW, THE PEOPLE WHO ARE BETTING THAT UNIX IS



        20  GOING TO REALLY AFFECT MICROSOFT'S PROFITABILITY ARE



        21  PEOPLE WHO ARE SHORTING MICROSOFT'S STOCK.  NOW, I DON'T



        22  KNOW WHO IS SHORTING MICROSOFT'S STOCK, BUT THAT HAS NOT



        23  BEEN A GOOD PLOY OF LATE.



        24  Q.   THANK HEAVENS FOR THAT, SIR.



        25  A.   YES.�
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         1           AND ALL I'M SAYING TO YOU IS THAT IF YOU REALLY



         2  BELIEVE, PERSONALLY, THAT THIS PRODUCT IS GOING TO



         3  SEVERELY CONSTRAIN MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY PROFITS, RUN,



         4  DON'T WALK, TO YOUR NEAREST BROKER AND SHORT MICROSOFT.



         5  Q.   I MAY BE CONSTRAINED FROM DOING THAT.  I TAKE THE



         6  POINT.



         7           BUT LET ME ASK THE QUESTION:  IS IT YOUR



         8  TESTIMONY, THEN, THAT YOUR BASIS FOR BELIEVING THAT THAT



         9  OPERATING SYSTEM OR OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS ABOUT WHICH



        10  YOU MAY KNOW SOMETHING, DO NOT CONSTRAIN MICROSOFT'S



        11  MONOPOLY PROFIT, THE FACT THAT MICROSOFT'S PE RATIO OR PE



        12  MULTIPLE IS HIGHER THAN OTHER PE'S OF OTHER COMPANIES YOU



        13  HAVE LOOKED AT?



        14  A.   NO.  YOU ASKED ME THAT--YOU ASKED ME TWO SEPARATE



        15  QUESTIONS.  ONE QUESTION WAS, DO I BELIEVE THAT IT



        16  CONSTRAINS MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY POWER OR MONOPOLY PROFITS,



        17  AND I SAY NO ON THE BASIS OF A HOST OF EVIDENCE.  LARGE



        18  PART OF IT IS, DOCUMENTS LIKE THIS, WHICH CAREFULLY GO



        19  THROUGH THE QUESTION OF WHAT DOES CONSTRAIN OUR PRICES AND



        20  NEVER MENTIONS ANOTHER PC OPERATING SYSTEM.  THERE IS NO



        21  MENTION IN THIS LIST OF CONCERNS.  I MEAN, LINUX DOESN'T,



        22  YOU KNOW, VOS.  NO OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM APPEARS.



        23           THE SECOND QUESTION YOU ASKED ME, THOUGH, IS ONE



        24  THAT WHAT WOULD I SAY IN SIX YEARS, OKAY?  AND WHAT I'M



        25  SAYING IS, I COULD TELL YOU RIGHT NOW THAT IT'S NOT�
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         1  CONSTRAINING.  THERE IS NO EVIDENCE THAT IT'S CONSTRAINING



         2  MICROSOFT'S PRICES OR ITS PROFITS.  AND WHAT THE FINANCIAL



         3  MARKETS ARE SAYING IS, THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF PEOPLE



         4  WILLING TO BET ON IT'S GOING TO CONSTRAIN IN THEM SIX



         5  YEARS.



         6           THE BEST I CAN DO SIX YEARS FROM NOW IS LOOK AT



         7  THE FINANCIAL MARKETS.



         8  Q.   NOW, IF I HAD ASKED YOU IN JANUARY OF 1995 IS THE



         9  BROWSER A THREAT TO MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY POWER, YOU WOULD



        10  HAVE TOLD ME NO; RIGHT?  OR YOU WOULD HAVE SAID "WHAT THE



        11  HECK IS A BROWSER"; RIGHT?



        12  A.   I CERTAINLY WOULD HAVE SAID THAT, YES.



        13  Q.   AND MOST PEOPLE IN THE FINANCIAL MARKETS PROBABLY



        14  WOULD HAVE SAID YES, WOULD THEY NOT?



        15  A.   THAT'S QUITE TRUE, PROBABLY.



        16           I MEAN, I DON'T KNOW.



        17  Q.   AND IF I SAID TO YOU--LET ME WITHDRAW THAT.



        18           HAVE YOU READ ANY DOCUMENTS WRITTEN IN THE LAST



        19  SIX MONTHS FROM MICROSOFT ON THE SUBJECT OF LINUX?



        20  A.   FROM MICROSOFT?



        21  Q.   YES.



        22  A.   I THINK I HAVE SEEN REFERENCES TO IT.  I HAVE SEEN AN



        23  AWFUL LOT OF PRESS ON LINUX.



        24  Q.   YOU HAVE SEEN A LOT OF PRESS IN THE LAST FEW MONTHS



        25  THAT MICROSOFT REGARDS LINUX AS MAYBE NOW ITS PRINCIPAL�
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         1  COMPETITIVE THREAT, HAVEN'T YOU, SIR?



         2  A.   WELL, ACTUALLY MAYBE EVEN BETTER THAN THAT THERE IS A



         3  DEPOSITION OF MR. KEMPIN IN WHICH WHEN ASKED ABOUT WHAT HE



         4  CONSIDERED TO BE A COMPETITIVE THREAT, HE ASSERTED THAT



         5  LINUX WAS A COMPETITIVE THREAT TO WINDOWS.  I MEAN, HE WAS



         6  IN A DEPOSITION, SO--AND IT'S PART OF THIS LITIGATION, BUT



         7  IT'S CLEAR THAT MICROSOFT'S LEGAL POSITION IS THAT LINUX



         8  IS A COMPETITOR.



         9  Q.   AND IT'S ALSO CLEAR THAT THAT WAS MR. KEMPIN'S



        10  TESTIMONY UNDER OATH AND PENALTY OF PERJURY?



        11  A.   JUST LIKE MINE.



        12  Q.   YES, INDEED.



        13           THE COURT:  MAYBE THIS IS A GOOD POINT TO BREAK



        14  FOR THE DAY.



        15           MR. LACOVARA:  I THINK SO, YOUR HONOR.  THANK



        16  YOU.



        17           THE COURT:  ANY ESTIMATE AS TO HOW LONG YOU ARE



        18  LIKELY TO BE?



        19           MR. LACOVARA:  I THINK IT WILL BE SEVERAL DAYS,



        20  YOUR HONOR.



        21           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



        22           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, MAY WE APPROACH?



        23           THE COURT:  YES.



        24           (BENCH CONFERENCE OFF THE RECORD.)



        25           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I WILL SEE YOU MONDAY�

                                                           103



         1  MORNING; IS THAT RIGHT?  10:00.



         2           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:35 P.M., THE HEARING WAS



         3  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00, MONDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 1998.)
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER



         2



         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RPR, COURT REPORTER, DO



         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE



         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO



         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER



         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING



         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE



         9  PROCEEDINGS.



        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,



        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS



        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE



        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.



        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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